
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 

phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 15 June 2022 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Meeting Room A  - Buxton Town Hall 

 
7 June 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

  
 i)  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
ii)  Other Interests.  

 

2. Apologies for absence  

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Appointment of Independent Member (Pages 7 - 8) 

5. External Audit Plan 21/22 (Pages 9 - 34) 

6. Risk Management Update (Pages 35 - 60) 

7. Annual Treasury Management Report 21/22 (Pages 61 - 78) 

8. Treasury Management Update Q1 22/23 (Pages 79 - 92) 

9. 21/22 Internal Audit Periodic Report (Pages 93 - 112) 

10. Internal Audit Charter (Pages 113 - 126) 

11. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 22/23 (Pages 127 - 132) 

12. Financial Management Code (oral update) 

13. Work Programme 22/23 (Pages 133 - 134) 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee 

Councillor E Thrane (Chair) Councillor O Cross (Vice-Chair) 

 

Public Document Pack



Councillor J Collins Councillor J Douglas 
Councillor S Flower Councillor E Longden 

Councillor R Quinn Councillor F Sloman 
Councillor G Wharmby Mr M Thomas 
Mr J Scampion  

 



1 
 

 

 
 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 9 February 2022 at 6.30 pm in Octagon Lounge, Pavilion 

Gardens, Buxton 

 

Present: Councillor E Thrane (Chair)   
 

 Councillors L Grooby (substitute for J Douglas) and R Quinn 

 
 J Scampion and M Thomas (Independent Members) and Councillor Barrow 

were also in attendance 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors O Cross, J Collins, 

J Douglas, F Sloman and G Wharmby 
 

The Chair referred to the recent death of Councillor Keith Savage and paid 
tribute to his work undertaken as a member of the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee. 

 
22/55 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 3) 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2021 be approved as 
a correct record. 

 
22/56 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER - UPDATE (ORAL) 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The Chair advised that two applications for Independent Member had been 

received and interviews would be held in due course. 
 

Martin Owen had been appointed as Executive Director (Finance and 
Revenues and Benefits), and would be taking up his position in late April. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the update be noted.  
 

22/57 EXTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE (ORAL) 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

The External Auditor provided the Committee with an update and advised 
that the accounts have now been signed off, the value for money 
assessments would be submitted to the next meeting, work was on-going 

around the Council’s housing benefit claim and planning was underway for 
the 2021/22 audit. 

 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 9 February 2022 

 

2 
 

Discussion ensued around recent announcements around changes to 
auditing practices, a key suggestion of which was to remove the 
requirement for councils to value their land and buildings annually in future 

years.  Proposals were also in hand to work with the Committee to develop 
it’s role in the audit process. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the update be noted.   
 

22/58 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

The Committee considered a report which contributed towards the effective 
two-way communication between the external auditors and the committee 

and covered some important areas of the auditor risk assessment.  A series 
of questions to and responses from management around a number of areas 
including fraud, laws and regulations, related parties, going concern and 

accounting estimates were included within the report. 
 

Reference was made to the recent Peer Challenge which had 
recommended that more contextual information be included in the Medium 
Term Financial Plan, particularly around scenario planning which would be 

included in future.  In response to a query around evidence used to qualify 
management responses, the External Auditor advised that a broad spectrum 
of evidence was gathered, reviewed and recorded which ultimately informs 

the audit opinion.  The process of auditing the External Auditors was also 
set out.  Regarding the issue of fraudulent loan payments reported by some 

councils, members were advised that no such weaknesses had been 
identified at this council, but that processes would still be reviewed going 
forward.  Regarding IT security, the Head of Internal Audit advised that the 

Transformation Service was responsible for cyber security, who advised 
external assistance if required, 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted. 
 

 
22/59 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 

The Committee considered the Council’s Management performance in 

2021/22 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management and 
generally accepted good practice. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the current Treasury Management position as at 31 December 2021 be 
noted. 

 
22/60 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) 2022/23 Page 4




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 9 February 2022 

 

3 
 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 

The Committee considered the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 

2022/23, ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four 
years are affordable and properly managed.  Discussion took place around 

the Council’s Ethical investments with it being noted that there was a need 
for the market to develop such products for investment opportunities.   
 

An alternative option for the calculation of the MRP which would allow the 
debt to be paid off earlier was set out in paragraphs 6.12 and 6.13 of the 

report, following discussion,  it was requested that this be considered further 
at the next meeting in conjunction with the Link report to enable members to 
gain a greater understanding of the policy and implications. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 

2022/23 be recommended to Council for approval; and 
 

2. A further report on the alternative method of calculating MRP be submitted 
to the next meeting. 

 
22/61 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (2000) - REVIEW OF 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 

The Council must have arrangements in place to ensure compliance with 

the Regulation of Investigatory power Act 2000 (RIPA) which are subject to 
inspection by the Investigatory power Commissioner’s Office (IPCO).  This 
is achieved through the adoption of a set of Policy and Procedures that 

ensure compliance with the requirements of the legislation.  The Council has 
had arrangements and procedures in place for authorising and conducting 

necessary surveillance since 2022.  Councillors should review the use of 
RIPA and set the policy at least once per year, together with considering 
internal reports on use of RIPA periodically to ensure it is being used 

consistently with the policy and that the policy remains fit for purpose.  The 
Committee considered the updated Policy and Procedures together with an 

update on the use of RIPA powers. 
 
It was noted that the future training provision for officers is in the process of 

being arranged. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Councils use of RIPA powers, be noted; and 

 
2. That the updated Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 Policy and 

Procedure attached at Appendix 1 be approved and adopted. 

 
22/62 2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT 

(Agenda Item 10) 
 

The Committee considered the performance of internal audit in relation to its 
plan as required by The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require Page 5




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 9 February 2022 

 

4 
 

the Council to ‘undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes,, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 

 
Discussion ensured around the impact of the administration of the covid 

grants on the council’s operations.  Members of the Committee and the 
Executive Councillor conveyed their thanks to the Audit & Finance Teams 
for their continued work. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the report be noted, 
 

22/63 WORK PROGRAMME 

(Agenda Item 11) 
 

The Work Programme would be reviewed to ensure a manageable workload 
for the committee. 

 
The Chair advised that this was the meeting of this committee to be 

attended by John Betts, who was thanked for all his work as Interim 
Executive Director. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Work Programme be noted. 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 7.47 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
CHAIR 

 

Page 6



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Appointment of Independent Member 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Linden Vernon – Head of Democratic 

Services 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
Non-Specific 

 
 

Appendices Attached – None 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To consider the appointment of an Independent Member to the Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Mrs Hannah Burbidge be appointed as an Independent Member of the 

Audit and Regulatory Committee. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Audit and Regulatory Committee comprises 9 elected members and 3 
(non-voting) independent members. Due to the resignation of one of the three 
independent members it has been necessary to recruit to the vacant position. 

 
3.2 Following interview it is recommended that Mrs Hannah Burbidge be 

appointed as an Independent member of the Committee. 
 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Not applicable.   
 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



  

5. Alternative Options 
 

5.1 It is recommended that the Committee approves the appointment of Mrs 

Burbidge to the vacant Independent Member position given that her 
experience and knowledge matches the technical and generic skills detailed in 

the Job Description for this position. 
 
 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (Governance and Commissioning) 

 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Report to Committee 1 December 2021 Linden Vernon 
Head of Democratic Services 
linden.vernon@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

 

 
6. Detail 

 
6.1 At its meeting on 11 May 2017 Council resolved that the Audit and Regulatory 

Committee comprise 9 elected members and 3 (non-voting) independent 
members and that delegated responsibility be granted to the Audit and 

Regulatory Committee to appoint future independent members. 
 
6.2 The Committee subsequently appointed candidates to these positions.  Due to 

a change in personal circumstances Mr Grant resigned from his position with 
the Council and it was therefore necessary to recruit to the vacant position that 

had arisen. 
  
6.3 The vacancy was advertised via the Council’s website and Mrs Hannah 

Burbidge was subsequently interviewed by the Chair/Vice-Chair of the Audit 
and Regulatory Committee and the Executive Councillor for Corporate 

Services and Finance. 
 
6.4 Mrs Burbidge is a charted accountant and qualified project manager employed 

in a senior role at a large accounting and professional services firm.  She is a 
financial and commercial advisor to public sector clients, managed large 

teams in the UK and abroad and has experience/knowledge which meet the 
requirements of the job description in the technical areas of accountancy, 
internal audit, risk management, governance or legal matters.  The position 

attracts an allowance of £395 per annum and the appointee will be able to 
claim out of pocket expenses.   

 
 
 

 
 

Page 8

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=2134&Ver=4


P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



Commercial in confidence

P
age 10



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

17

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

P
age 26

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

.

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

21

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

22

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

✓

TBC

TBC

TBC

TBC

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•Page 33



P
age 34



 

 

          
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

 
15th June 2022 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Appendices Attached:  
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception) 

Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception) 
Appendix C: Project Risks (by exception) 

Appendix D: Opportunity Risks (all registers by exception) 

 
1.        Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to enable the Committee to seek assurance as to 

the adequacy of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements in accordance 
with accepted good practice.   

 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the committee notes the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation 

/ fruition plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks), Appendix B 

(operational risks), Appendix C (project risks) and Appendix D (opportunity 
risks).  

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1  The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 

by the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. This report is 
based upon the Council’s position as at March 2022.    

 

3.2 The latest analysis of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council has 
identified and assessed 18 strategic risks, of which 50% are rated as 'high' 

and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. The strategic risk 
profile has changed since last reported, with the addition of one new ‘high’ 

TITLE: Risk Management Update (overview of 
strategic, operational and project risks)     

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Alan Barrow – Corporate Services and 
Finance  

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Information Business Partner 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



 

 

rated risk in relation to social housing regulation. The nine ‘high’ rated risks 
are listed in full at Appendix A.    

 

3.3 The Operational Risk Registers reveal that the Council has identified and 
assessed 56 operational risks in total, of which 12 are rated as ‘high’ and 

therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. The details of all the 
significant changes can be found at paragraph 9. The risks falling within the 
‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. 

 
3.4 The project risk registers currently cover 17 projects and the risk profile is 

bulleted below: 
 

 0% Critical  

 17% High – 18 risks   

 56% Medium – 61 risks 

 27% Low – 29 risks 
 

4. Evaluation of Options 

 

4.1 There are no options to consider 
 
 

5. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

5.1 Risk Management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.    

 

 
6. Implications 

 
6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 

 
6.2 Workforce 

None  
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies 

 
6.4 

 
Financial Considerations 
Effective Risk Management contributes to financial objectives  

 
6.5 

 
Legal 

None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 

None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

Page 36



 

 

6.8 
 
 

 

Risk Assessment 
The Council’s Risk Registers are a critical element in the Council’s 
Risk Management Framework.   

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

Risk Registers – March 2022  
 

Buxton Town Hall Information Business Partner 
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk  
Tel Ext 4057 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 37

mailto:Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk


 

 

7. Background and Introduction 

 
7.1 The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic 

identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance 
the achievement of its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk 

Management Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing 
basis.  

 

7.2 In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in 
terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the 

Council's Risk Registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational 
and project risks.  

 

7.3 Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold 
is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The 

Strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that 
exceed this threshold. 

 

7.4 The Council’s Strategic, Operational and Project Risk Registers are reviewed 
on a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group 

and the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. The 
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above, 
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.   

 
8. Strategic Risks 

 

8.1 The March 2022 review of the Strategic Risk Register reveals that the Council 
has identified and assessed 18 Strategic Risks, of which 50% are rated as 

'high' and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. Since the last 
risk report, the following changes to the strategic risk profile have taken place: 

 

 New ‘high’ rated risk around the council’s preparedness for the 
anticipated regulatory changes to social housing as outlined in the 

White Paper. The Council has developed a cross-service action plan, 
led by the Head of Housing to help ensure that the new requirements of 

the Social Housing Regulation Bill can be met.  
 

8.2  There continues to be four opportunity risks within the register – housing 

growth, business growth, commercialism (trading) and effective contractor 
relations, which the alliance is working to reap the benefits from. 

 
8.3 The Council’s risk profile is displayed below.  

 

Residual Risk Rating High Peak Risks Alliance Risks Total Risks 

Critical - - - 
High 1 8 9 

Medium 1 7 8 

Low - 1 1 
Total Risks 18 

 
 
 

 

Page 38



 

 

Matrix 1: Risk Threats  

 
Matrix 2: Risk Opportunities 

    
8.4 The nine high rated risks are mapped on Matrix 1 above and the three 

 opportunity risks are shown on Matrix 2. The categories of risk now recorded 
 on the strategic risk register cover a broader range of risk types than 

 before. The graphic below illustrates the risk profile across both threats and 
 opportunities and also across our Corporate Plan aims.      

 

 
 

Impact 
Li

ke
lih

o
o

d
 

 1 2 3 4 5 

5
     

    
 
 

 
4

     
   - MTFP 

- World Events 

 

 

3
     

   -  IT Security 
- Employees 
- Env Regs 
- Social Housing  

- Contract 
Mngt 

- Investment 
into assets  

2
    

       
- Safeguarding 

duty  

1
     

     

Impact 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

 5 4 3 2 1 

5     

 
 

 

   
 

 

 

4     

 

 
 

 Effective 

contractor 
relations 

  

3     

Housing & 
Business 
Growth 

    

2    

     

1     

     

Page 39



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
9. Operational Risks  

 

9.1 The March 2022 analysis of the Operational Risk Registers reveals that the 

Council has identified and assessed 56 operational risks in total, of which 12 
are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. 
There have been a number of changes made to the risk registers in the six 

months since the last report; the most significant of which are bulleted below: 
 

 Assets – two new risks added around hyper-inflation energy costs 
(medium) and construction costs / resource availability (high) 
 

 Development Services – escalation of the arboreal services risk to 
‘high’ rated due to loss of staff member 

 
  

9.2 The 12 risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A 

full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below: 
 

Residual Risk 
Rating 

High Peak Risks Alliance 
Risks 

Total Risks 

Critical - - - 
High 1 11 12 

Medium 7 15 22 
Low 7 15 22 

Total Risks 56 

    

9.3 The greatest number of operational risks now sits within Assets, closely 
followed by Carelink and Housing Repairs. An analysis of the alignment of risk 

to our corporate objectives shows that most operational risks relate to the use 
of resources in order to achieve value for money.   

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 40



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
10. Project Risks 

 

10.1 The alliance’s project management methodology requires all projects to 

 present an assessment of associated risks at Stage Two of the decision-
 making process for project approval. 
 

10.2 Existing project risk registers are detailed below which show the addition of 
two new projects, Call Recording and Norse, since the last report:  

    
 Accelerated housing delivery programme 
 Glossop Cemetery 

 Glossop Halls  
 Committee Management System 

 Leisure Consultancy  
 Assets Database  
 HAZ Scheme Buxton  

 Local Plan Review  
 Collective  

 Procurement Workflow  
 Building Control Partnership  
 Buxton Future High Street Fund  

 Land Charges migration 
 Bankswood  

 Developer Contributions  
 NEW Call Recording 
 NEW Norse 

 
10.3 The profile of project risk threats overall is bulleted below:  
 
 

Page 41



 

 

 0% Critical  

 17% High – 18 risks   

 56% Medium – 61 risks 

 27% Low – 29 risks 

 
10.4 In addition, a total of 39 opportunity risks have been identified across 13 of 
 the above projects and all above tolerance positive risks are reported in 

 Appendix D.  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
      

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 42



Appendix A: Above tolerance Strategic Risks 

ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

M. Owen SRRT 

- 2 

Delivery of MTFP 

through the 
Efficiency and 
Rationalisation 
Strategy 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 4 
 

Effective programme and project management methodology 

for the transformation programme. Performance 
Management Framework monitors the achievement of 
Council Aims. Current efficiency programme savings 
substantially complete at HPBC.  Annual financial planning 

cycle includes 2 updates of the MTFP (Oct/ November & 
February) revising assumptions and known spending 
pressures to arrive at best reflection of the financial position 
over the medium term. Assessment made of sustainability of 

plan and likely impact on reserves  levels. 

1. Monthly Transformation Board meetings to oversee key 

projects l inked to the efficiency and rationalisation strategy e.g. 
housing delivery programmes to facil itate growth and the 
various income generation projects.  
2. Continuation of major procurement projects following on 

from completion of AES implementation (e.g. facil ities 
management).  
3. MTFP review (Oct/Nov & Feb)  
4. Review future savings potential in context of a revised 

Efficiency Plan.  
 

M. Tril lo SRRT 
- 5 

Effective contract 
management 

 
Impact – 5 
Like – 3 
 

 

1. Contract register in place.  
2. Clear specification at the point of contract appointment 

e.g. KPIs.  
3. Allocated contract manager within service areas.  
4. Pre-qualification checks.  
5. Due dil igence undertaken.  

6. Insurance requirements.  
7. Bond / Financial Security guarantee for high value / high 
risk larger contracts.   
8. Ensure Payments to suppliers are processed in accordance 

with the terms of the appointments (to ensure cash flow in 
supply chain).  
 

1. Procurement Business Partner meetings with Service 
Managers have a contract management focus and will  provide 

prompts for ongoing contractor checks needed.  
2. Updated Procurement Strategy will  have an enhanced focus 
on contract management, including a new Toolkit for use by 
contract managers.  

3. Carry out a risk-prioritisation exercise for major contracts and 
conduct annual financial health checks against the most critical 
contractors.   
4. Monitor key strategic suppliers in l ight of CV-19 impact on 

business model   
5. Specific close monitoring and liaison with Parkwood Leisure.  
Regular dialogue, open book accounting, cost plus arrangement 

in place. 
M. Tril lo SRRT 

- 9 

Safeguarding duty 

 
Impact – 5 
Like - 2 

1. Revised Joint Policy in place for Safeguarding Children and 

Vulnerable Adults.  
2. Council is a member of the District Safeguarding Network 
(Staffs and Derby).  

3 All  staff have been briefed on the safeguarding policy and 
identified staff have received level 1 training in safeguarding 
children.  
4. Training on adult safeguarding has been provided to key 

staff members.  

The Alliance Safeguarding Group meets quarterly to manage 

risks. All  staff members receive training according to a roll ing -
programme linked to their level of risk. The Safeguarding Policy 
and actions are reviewed annually through a report to Elected 

Members 
 

P
age 43



ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

5. Call  recording software introduced. 
 

N. Rodgers SRRT 
- 12 

Investment into 
council assets and 

long-term 
planning 
 
Impact – 5 

Like – 3 
 

Asset register on spreadsheet databases and PDF docs. 
Ownership information within land terrier format. Capital 

spend identified broadly on MTFP only based on historic 
condition data from 5 years ago. 
 

1. Assets database has largely been completed - base data is 
included and stock condition is being entered by way of 

projects set out in point 2 below. Other tweaks and changes to 
the system will  continue as BAU.   
2. Concertus has commenced stock condition project. Data 
collection due to be complete by Spring 22. (Experienced covid 

delays) Energy audits of key buildings to be undertaken before 
end of Jan 22.  
3. Asset Management Plan (AMP) to be worked through to 

determine the level and extent of capital schemes and planned 
maintenance following the condition survey data and energy 
audit data. Input from Norse required once JV has gone live.  
4. Additional capacity to be included within new Assets team 

structure (to follow the Norse JV project) to focus on delivering 
strategic asset management strategy and planning.  
 

N. Rodgers / 
M. Tril lo 

SRRT 
- 13 

Meeting the 
environmental 

regulatory 
framework (e.g. 
air quality, waste 

regs and carbon 
reduction targets) 
 
Impact – 4 

Like – 3 
 

1. Air quality monitoring equipment deployed and analysed 
externally.  

2. Order under Sec 83 of Environment Act made declaring an 
Air Quality Management Area for part of Woodhead Road, 
Tintwistle.   

3. Current service methodology assessed in regards to TEEP in 
2015.  
4. Significant service change should be raised at Shareholder 
or Commissioning Board meetings, a revised TEEP 

assessment will  be conducted as part of the councils 
considerations of service changes.  
5. AES contract enables a "change notice" to be issued by 
either Council or Contractor,  for a significant change to 

service.  
6. Air Quality Plan approved by members Nov 2019, with 
regular update reports to scrutiny.  

7. Climate action plan agreed. 

1.Implement actions outlined in Air Quality Plan and submit 
yearly progress report (service review in EH to address resource 

issues).  
2. Committee approval would be required for a service 
methodology change, associated risks would be detailed in any 

report and a TEEP assessment completed.  
3. Monthly contract meeting would provide further opportunity 
for service change discussions.  
4. Implement climate action plan to meet the 2030 carbon-

neutral targets. 
 

P
age 44



ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

 

M. Owen SRRT 
- 15 

Financial and 
Legislative 
impacts from 

world events e.g., 
Brexit 
 
Impact – 4 

Like – 4 

Briefings from external auditors, Treasury advisors and Govt 
departments. Access to local intell igence networks on 
business trends and developments . 

 

1. Keep abreast of Brexit progress and respond to legislative 
impacts accordingly.  
2. Treasury management strategy is regularly reviewed.  

3. Multi-agency emergency planning preparations and business 
continuity planning.  
4. Co-ordinated strategic COVID-19 response as part of declared 
major incident. 

 

A. Stokes SRRT 
- 16 

Cyber risk and IT 
Security  
 

Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 

1. ICT security policy.  
2. Staff training (ICT Use 2018).   
3. Annual health checks.   

4. IT strategy infrastructure review completed and IT 
Infrastructure project completed.  
5. Healthcheck completed March 2020 with no issues.  
6. Microsoft Licence audit completed, again with no 

compliance issues. Infrastructure health check underway - 
Sept 2019.  
7. New Microsoft Licensing Agreement in place.  
8. Cyber security funding of £6k received from the IDEA in 

May 2020.  
9.  New IT contact in place from the 1st April  2021 for 3+1+1 
years.  

10. New IT / Digital Strategy approved.   
11. Cyber Risk Health Check undertaken by external risk 
specialists and reported to risk group. 
 

1. Develop an action plan for the new IT / Digital Strategy in 
conjunction with NEC and Socitm.  
2. Regular training and communication updates.  

3. High Priority findings from the Cyber Risk Health Check 
currently being implemented. 
 

A. Stokes SRRT 

- 17 

Employee 

wellbeing 
negatively 
affected 
 

Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 

1. HR policies and procedures.  

2. Staff counselling services.  
3. Flexible working hours. 
4. Internal communication channels well embedded.  
5. MS Teams rolled out.  

6.Agile working policy approved and implemented.  
7. Staff communications have continued to promote mental 
health and wellbeing with sign posting to support including 

1. Agile Working Policy - it has been agreed with the union that 

following implementation of the policy we will  monitor closely 
to address any issues immediately.  
2. Implement training for Mental Health First Aiders 
(nominations received).  

 

P
age 45



ALT 
Owner  

Ref Risk 
Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

the staff counselling service. 
 

M. Owen SRRT 
- 18 

Failure to meet 
the new 

regulatory 
requirements 
proposed in 
relation to the 

provision of social 
housing (landlord 
role) 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

1. Multi-disciplinary Officer Working Group established and 
action plan developed to help identify areas in need of 

improvement to meet potential compliance framework.  
2. TPAS commissioned to carry out tenant engagement 
activities.  
3. New set of management KPIs as part of the NORSE 

contract, covering H&S.  
4. Fully compliant on complaints requirements  
 

1. Further develop and implement the Action Plan. 
2. Maintain focus on the emerging regulations . 

 

 
 

 

P
age 46



Appendix B: Above Tolerance Operational Risks 

Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Assets 
 
 

Impact – 5 
Like – 2 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Impact – 5 
Like – 2 
 

 
 
 
 

Impact – 3 
Like – 4 
 

 
 
 
 

Impact – 4 
Like - 4  

AS6 Delivery of Repairs, 
Maintenance, 
Compliance and FM 

in Public Buildings 

1. Close management of the contract. Monthly meetings in 
place. 2. Ongoing dialogue between Alliance and DCC / Vertas. 
Verbal understanding service will  continue until  31.03.22 as a 

minimum. 2. Actively looking at other delivery options - Norse 
project..  

1. C&C to transfer to Norse from 01.04.22 as Phase 1 of 
the project.  2. Mobilising the R&M service as part of 
phase 2 project due to go live 04.07.22.  

AS8 Compliance or H&S 
Failure in HRA  

1. Contract management in place to ensure compliance aspects 
are undertaken.  2. New system of prioritisation in place with 

Repairs and Neighbourhoods Teams for area of urgent 
escalation. 3. Data held within Keystone System. 4. Asbestos 
Action Group formed to work through actions relating to 
asbestos management.  5. New system of classifying potentially 

dangerous failures.  6. Norse will  deliver the operations of 
Compliance and H&S activities from 4th July 2022 - project 
gearing up to include improvements to be managed through 
KPIs.  

1. Phase 2 mobilisation of Norse project due to go live 
04.07.22. This will  include the investment into "connect" a 

new system to recorded and manage compliance 
activities across the HRA along with reactive repairs. 
 2. Compliance activities have been detailed in services 
spec and within the agreed KPIs to manage the delivery of 

the service. Detailed mobilisation plans are being worked 
on.   

AS11 Sustainability of the 

Assets Green 
agenda and CO2 
net zero by 2030 

Input into the corporate carbon reduction plan. Further work on 

database and stock condition required to refocus on climate 
change in a revised AMP.  All  capital projects are to review the 
"green options" before implementation. 

1. Central focus in AM policy and strategy work.  2. 

Strategic approach required for AMP and Climate change 
action plan. 3. Commission Energy Audits of key public 
buildings to assist revised AMP.  4. Started EFG project 

and developing retrofit options within the HRA, util ising 
LAD 2 funding.  5. Interrogation of energy audits against 
stock condition to develop new investment programme.  

AS15 Increase in cost of 
materials, sub-

contractors and 
supply.  
 

Some contracts are stil l  in place with pricing based on original 
agreements. As contracts come to an end, prices are significantly 

increasing. Contracts are being reviewed on individual merits and 
alternative procurement options are being reviewed, however 
priced and suppliers across the board are being effected.  

1. Following phase 2 of Norse project, ongoing review 
through KPIs of VFM and cost implications of service. Seek 

alternative delivery methods for capital programme and 
repairs if possible. Seek out alternative suppliers where 
possible. 2. Apply inflationary increases to l ikely costs of 
the AMP in the MTFP to ensure that significant increases 

in costs are captured.  3. Review AMP and HRA business 
Plan refresh to capture significant levels of cost inflation.  

Democratic  DC1 Breach of equality 
regulations 
 

Impact – 4 

1.Equality impact assessments undertaken 2.Equalities policy in 
place 3. Equality impact  has been written into the new project 
methodology currently being introduced 4. Staff training 

programme  delivered 5. Monitor completion and quality of EIAs 

Revised equality objectives (using the LGA Equality 
Framework) approved at March/April  Cabinet/Executive.  
These will  be built into Service Plans for 2022/23.  First 

meeting of new Officer group to meet 11 May to drive 

P
age 47



Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Like - 3 through the Mod Gov. system. EIA has been revised in Modern 

Gov Mar 2019 
 

improvements. 

 

Service 
Commission 

SC1 Failure to deliver 
waste and recycling 
collection services 

to domestic 
properties and 
businesses 
 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1. Shareholding and Commissioning Board meeting structure in 

place 2. Quarterly financial meetings held to flag up financial 
challenges. 3.Monthly Client meetings undertaken to monitor 
service delivery and performance. 4. Employees categorised as 
key workers. 5. Contractor Business Continuity Plan in place and 

reviewed regularly 
 
 

1. Would bring service back in house, vehicles primarily 
owned by the Alliance, would spot hire any required in 
short term if risk materialised. 2. Continuation of current 

controls. 3. Social distancing controls instigated by 
contractor, crews changes kept to minimum, crews 
travelling in separate vehicles, higher cleanliness 
measures, twice weekly testing available to all   staff (key 

workers). 4. Staff from streets and parks (non-priority) 
trained to be able to undertake and support waste 
collections. 5. Contractors contingency arrangements 

have been tested in recent months and in place should 
they be required again. 

SC3 Leisure Centre 
service provision 
failure 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

1. Pre contract award supplier checks 2. Commissioning Board 
structure now in place to monitor contractor performance - two 

meetings per annum. 3. Contractor is invited to attend Scrutiny 
Committees at both councils annually to be challenged on 
performance issues. 4. Monthly client meetings to review 

operations 4. Use of large operator 5. Quarterly financial 
statements from contractor/s.  5. Financial support package 
provided by the Alliance to the supplier during covid pandemic 
due to loss of income. 

1. Monthly client meetings to monitor performance 2. 
Commissioning Board structure in place to monitor 
contractor performance alongside attendance at Scrutiny 

Committees at both councils annually  3. Financial support 
package given by Councils 4. Consultancy support 
obtained via Sport England to help determine impact of 
operator failure on Councils in regards to l iabilities and 

risk. 5. Consultancy support being sourced to review long 
term delivery model of operations. 6. Government 
funding awarded in Feb 2021 to help offset financial 

impact due to covid on recovery of facil ities post 
pandemic. 

Development 
Services 

PL2 Ability to deliver 
adequate Arboreal 
Services across the 

Alliance 
 
Impact – 3 
Like - 5 

1.Staff prioritise on a case by case basis 
2. Monitor impact of Ash dieback on workloads  
3.Recruitment process in place following resignation of staff 

member 
 

1. Regular monitoring of workload 
2. Recruit to vacant post as soon as possible 

Env Health Env 2 Major incident 

(requiring 

1. Cross working , multi/minor skil led staff.                            

2. Emergency Plan in place and tested.       

1.Focus on personal development and additional training 

for existing staff to retain existing talent (PEP process)  

P
age 48



Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Environmental 

Health 
response/input) 
 
Impact – 3 

Like - 4 

3.Remote system access 

4.Good working relationship with other LA's /Agencies.             
5.Good communication network 
6.Liaison with high risk premises on contingency plans  
7. More control over officers and teams in new structure- can be 

deployed to specific areas more effectively. 
 

2. Due to COVID 19- some backlog of inspections, Covid-

19 has impacted on Environmental Health and Licensing 
functions, additional workload.   
3. A service review is underway to ensure we have 
enough FTE to achieve the minimum statutory 

requirements. Service review stil l  in progress (April  22) . 
Training ongoing for Animal Welfare however this will  
take at least 18mths to obtain competency.  

4) Support is needed for the Ukrainian housing 
inspections.  

Finance  FP1 Risk to income 
stream/budget 
overspend 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 4 

1. Budget monitoring                                                             
2. Efficiency programme                    
3. Consider latest intell igence for budget reviews                        

4.Contingency reserve in place  

1. Ensure there is a provision in the General Fund on an 
annual review basis.  
 2. Monitor budget position and target specific areas 

quarterly throughout the year- the budget assumption in 
22/23 is that income levels have recovered to pre Covid 
position. The  Covid Reserves built up over the last 2 years 
remain in place (£xx SM / £xx HP). Impact of cost of l iving 

crisis on service income streams to be monitored and 
built into future MTFP assumptions at update.   
3. Resourcing of efficiency and transformation process via 

the Transformation Board monthly update monitoring. 
FP2 Pension Liability 

risk to budget 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 3 

1. Monitoring of pension liability  2. Careful consideration of 

pension cost implications when awarding contracts 
(externalisation of services) 3. Base budgets on latest intell igence                            
4. Manage pressure through the Financial Planning process.                         

5. Close liaison with pensions authority and actuary                                                             
6. Careful workforce planning including consideration of 
potential  pension fund consequences of future outsourcing 
arrangements 

1. Flag up potential long term risks and manage carefully 

as part of the medium term financial planning process. 
Wage inflation borne out of cost of l iving crisis will impact 
future pension liabilities and Fund investment returns; 

and likely lead to an increase in Employer contributions.                                                                    
 2.The 2022 LGPS triennial valuation outcomes (which will  
become known in Q3 2022/23) will  be incorporated in 
MTFP revision (Feb 23).  

FP3 Treasury 

Management 
failure (General) 
 
Impact – 5 

Like - 2 

1. Professional training of staff  2. Professional advice and 

support  3. Careful control of lending list including investment 
l imits on institutions  through formally adopted Treasury 
Management strategy.  4. Full  compliance with the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy's (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management 

1. Carry out regular credit checks and react to latest 

developments in treasury management risk. Incorporate 
into the annual Treasury Management Strategy - reported 
to Full Council each February 
2. Keep under review: the post COVID / high inflation 

economy may impact banks . The lending criteria we have 
in place should flag up early risk signs. Regular monitoring 

P
age 49



Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

controls sufficient to keep within acceptable l imits. 

3. Ensure due consideration is given to risks associated 
with specific types of investment, such as in extractive 
industries 

 
 

P
age 50



Appendix C: Above Tolerance Project Risks 
Project Ref Risk Description (vulnerability) Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  

Accelerated 
Housing 
Delivery  
 

All  
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

PLA 
3.1 
(4) 
 

Land assembly and all  land options need 
to be confirmed and details with HE 
prior to draw down of the total 
commitment of funding 

Council own the land to deliver roundabout 
(subject to revised lease with GC). All  
options secured on Hogshaw and copies of 
these with HE. Waiting for signed options 

on Waterswallows land and contract to sell  
on Heywood land. HE have agreed to defer 
sight of options until  31 March 2022.  

FG liaising with land promoters to agree HoT. Draft HoT 
with land promoters.  

PLA 
3.1 

(7) 

The risk of not being able to negotiate 
satisfactory terms for legal agreements 

with third parties in respect of 
discharging funding conditions because 
they rely on actions of third parties 

which are outside the Council’s control  

Council has appointed additional capacity 
support and legal advice to prepare and 

negotiate the legally binding agreements.  

Council has appointed additional capacity support and 
legal advice to prepare and negotiate the legally binding 

agreements. HE has extended condition deadlines to end 
of wider project.  

PLA 

3.1 
(8) 

The Funding Agreement conditions 

cannot be met at all, or within a 
timescale that allows the funding to be 
drawn down within the Availability 

Period. 

Council has appointed additional capacity 

support to assist with GFA conditions 
including external legal advice to assist with 
legal agreements with developers. HE have 

agreed to defer a number of wider project 
discharge GFA conditions as these are not in 
the control of the council.  

Council has appointed additional capacity support to 

assist with GFA conditions including external legal advice 
to assist with legal agreements with developers. HE have 
agreed to defer a number of wider project discharge GFA 

conditions as these are not in the control of the council.  

PLA 
3.1 

(9) 

The Council enters into one or more 
agreements that involve legal 

commitments (especially that involve 
the expenditure of Council money) 
without certainty that the full  Project 
will  be capable of delivery. 

Notwithstanding that this risks the HIF 
funding not being available to meet the 
expenditure, it also risks the Council 

sacrificing its assets without securing the 
anticipated public benefit (in the case of 
the sale of the Hogshaws and/or 
Waterswallows land at an undervalue, 

and the foregoing of rent and 
commitment to works at the Golf Club  

Project monitored through monthly 
meetings and regular member update 

reports. Appointment of additional capacity 
support and external legal advice to assist 
on mitigating council risk through suitable 
legal binding agreements.  

Project is monitored through monthly internal and 
external project board meetings and with regular HE 

meetings and members update reports.   Appointment of 
additional capacity support and external legal advice to 
assist on mitigating council risk through suitable legal 
binding agreements. Member approval confirmed to 

understand risks/costs etc and to proceed with project - 
Feb 2022.  

P
age 51



Project Ref Risk Description (vulnerability) Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
NEW 
Impact – 4 

Like - 5 

PLA 
3.1 

(12) 

Inability to fund GC mitigation works  Liaison and monitoring with DCC to 
understand timing of work and impact on 

roundabout construction programme.  

Works will  now be in place at the same time. Ongoing 
discussions between Director and MP to manage the co-

ordination of the projects.  

PLA 
3.1 
(13) 

Construction costs increase HE funding increased to £2,448,801 to allow 
for project overruns.   

Fb 22 Exec to agree increased cost of GC mitigation works.  

AHDP 
5 

River Wye Pollutants (Nutrient 
Neutrality) 

None as risk only just identified  Work with Natural England etc to understand impacts.  

Glossop Halls 2 Construction Material Supply and costs  

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 

Monitoring of the industry is being carried 

out by procurement, current design team 
and Focus Consultants. Information is 
received and disseminated from the LGA on 
a regular basis and shared with the project 

team. A monthly project board meeting 
lead by the Executive Director for 
Governance and Commissioning. Regular 

reporting and conversations are held with 
funders D2N2. 
 

The project team is considering alternative ways to 

deliver the project and savings within the scheme. Agreed 
two stage procurement route for the Main Contractor 
resulting in F Parkinson appointed for the second stage 
tender to confirm costs with their supply chain via an 

'open book' process. 
 

3 Inability to appoint a suitable 
construction contractor 

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 
 

Legal advice was sought regarding the 
Councils procurement approach. 

Procurement process has been adapted to 
help mitigate the risks of not securing a 
suitable contractor. The process is a 2 stage 
restricted approach. The 2nd stage involves 

the Council working with the appointed 
contractor to negotiate the fees, supplies 
etc. to reduce the risk for both parties. The 

process will  be monitored closely to ensure 
that a suitable contractor can be achieved. 
Negotiations with D2N2 will  be ongoing 
regarding the procurement process 

 

Procurement will  be monitored by project board with the 
support of Focus consultants. F Parkinson appointed to 

undertake the second stage tender working with the 
Team and securing subcontract costs via their supply 
chain. 
 

P
age 52



Project Ref Risk Description (vulnerability) Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  
4 Procurement of a collaborative strategic 

commercial partner  

 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

 

Advise was sought from Quarterbridge re 
the initial designs to make them attractive 

to a commercial partner and also an outline 
of the possible operating models. Support 
and input into the process is being sought 

from Focus. Involvement with the local 
community through the Creative Trust. This 
is monitored in the monthly Project Board 
meetings. 

 

Procurement will  be monitored by project board with the 
support of Focus consultants. Communications with D2N2 

ongoing. Engagement with the Creative Trust is ongoing. 
 

8 Recovery of VAT charged against the 
Capital elements of the development 
works 
 

Impact – 5 
Like - 3 

Prepared Forecast Project Cashflow to 
indicate expenditure a cross financial years 
which is updated on a regular basis. Seek 
specialist VAT advise to confirm status   

 

HPBC opting to apply VAT to income streams from the 
facil ities 
 

11 D2N2 Grant Draw Down  
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 4 

Prepared/ monitor Forecast Project 
Cashflow to provide an indication of the 
shortfall. Maintain regular communications 
with D2N2 Grant Officers to advise them of 

the issues/ seek their advice. Bring forward 
associated non-core works such as the 
Municipal Building heating replacement.   

 

Oversee the delivery of the additional non-core works 
with the Financial Year. Continue regular communications 
with D2N2 Grant Officers to advise them of the issues/ 
seek their advice. Considering the use of an Advance 

Payment Bond to cover expenditure shortfall. 
 

14 Construction Programme  
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 5 

Parkinson to prepare construction 
programme based on supply chain input  

Wider review of programme to identify means to reduce 
programme. 

P
age 53



Project Ref Risk Description (vulnerability) Current Controls Further Mitigation Plans  
Buxton FHSF 5 Procurement of development partner 

 

Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

Due to staff capacity it is preferred route to 
source new procurement partner but as 

independent financial advice shown 
prudential borrowing would meet HPBC 
internal investment requirements there 

remains option for council to fully build out 
proposals subject to committee approval.  A 
Development options report was 
commissioned including workshop with SLT 

on options/case studies and risk  Submitted 
as appendix to Executive (and All staff 
scrutiny). Seeking PM support via agency 
and revising tender spec for advise on 

securing delivery partner       
 

Further to report, a review of recommendations between 
Asset Manager, Director of Place & Regeneration 

manager will  be established in April  22 to map out next 
steps in terms of assessing residential, l ibrary (college) 
and car parking options and consider appointment of land 

agents to inform next steps to understand what type of 
development partner(s) the council may wish to procure.  
 

Dev Cont SPD PLA8 National planning reforms abolish S106 
agreements 

 
Impact – 2 
Like - 5 

S106 agreements will  be abolished. The 
timescales for this are TBC. In any event, it 

is l ikely that there would be transitional 
arrangements in place to allow LPAs time to 
move over to the new system. The SPDs will  
provide guidance during this period.  

 

Close scrutiny of Government announcements and the 
planning press to identify scope of reforms ASAP. 

 

Land Charges 
 
Impact – 4 
Like – 3 

 
 
 

 
Impact – 2 
Like - 5 

LLC6 Prepare and Migration Stage and Go Live  
 
Staff Absences / Support  
 

Resources should be monitored on an 
ongoing basis in l ine with project 
requirements/deadlines. 

Resources to be monitored 

LLC7 Prepare and Migration Stage and Go 

Live:  
 
iLap failures to connect 

 

Reviewing the systems that have 

superseded iLap and others available.  
 
UPI to be created, which will  increase the 

LCOs work load 
 

Review into options available to use and scope 

 
 

   
 

P
age 54



 
Appendix D: Above Tolerance Opportunity Risks  
  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  

Strategic 

Neil Rodgers SRRO 
- 1 

Housing Growth 
 
Impact – 5 
Like - 3 

1. Affordable Homes Programme. 2. 
Empty Homes Strategy in place. 3. 
Local Plan approved for High Peak. 4. 
Accelerated Housing Delivery 

Programme  

1. Empty homes strategy implementation. 2. Focus on growth agenda through 
Local Plan delivery - realisation of Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme. 3. 
Work with Homes England to access funding to support housing growth.  4.  In 
Progress - disposal of remaining Council owned sites being programmed for 

2023/24.  
Neil Rodgers SRRO 

- 2 
Business Growth 
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 4 

1. Growth Hub referrals. 2. County 
working e.g. participation in 
Derbyshire 100% retention pilot for 
2018/19. 3. Provision of employment 

units 4. Business Newsletters 
advising of grant funding 
opportunities and training events to 

help businesses survive and flourish 

1. Implement the accelerated business growth and employment programme. 2. 
Work with LEP partners to access vital funding to support business growth. 3 New 
business support schemes provided by CRF programmes and Vision Derbyshire. 
Use of ARG funding to provide enhanced business support.  

Mark Tril lo SRRO 

- 4 

Effective contractor 

relationships 
 
Impact – 3 

Like - 4 

Current procurement and contract 

management arrangements. 

1. Greater focus on Council as commissioner  2. Effective contract management 

arrangements that build up effective partnership arrangements  3. Focus on 
Contract Management within the Procurement Strategy (Information Digest 
Report released June 2021). New Strategy expected June 2022. 

Operational 
Helen Core – 
Carelink 

 
Both  
Impact – 4 
Like – 5 

CLO1 Capitalising on the 
new operating model 

to grow the client 
base 

These opportunities can be properly 
explored once the new structure has 

been implemented. 

Marketing, advertising, and promotion to be reviewed in 2022. 

CLO2 Capitalizing on the 
new operating model 
to expand the range 

of services offered  

Tanya  
Cooper 
 
Impact – 3 

Like - 4 

ODTO
R1 

Efficiency 
opportunities arising 
from the 
implementation of 

new IT systems 
 
 

IT strategy being evaluated to create 
a clearer picture of the way forward 
and the required actions. 
 

Background work around the IT strategy is being evaluated in 2022. 
 

P
age 55



  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  
Projects 

Sarah Porru – 
FHSF 
 

All  
Impact – 3 
Like – 4 
 

 

1 legal and co-
financing deal  

FHSF grant approved and MOU now 
signed/issued. Exclusivity agreement 
with owners in place, although not 

signed/dated. Council Executive has 
approved price offer 9/12/21. 

1. FHSF business case  approved (complete).                                                                      
2. Executive approved price offer for purchase (complete).                                                                         
3. Price agreed and appropriate legal/due dil igence conditions investigated prior to 

exchange. (May 22)  
                                                              

2 Potential to 

maximise visitor 
economy 

FHSF underway and Council approval 

agreed for submission 

Works to inform mapping of development option underway (subject to price 

agreement).                                                                     

3 New housing, 
business growth, 
sustainable town 

centre and new 
employment 
opportunities. 

FHSF grant offer and MOU signed. 
Works on due dil igence completed. 
Procured advice on route for 

appointment of development 
partner  

Parking matters reviewing car park proposals in masterplan and options. 
Development options report received and submitted to executive. Mapping  0f 
development option underway (subject to price agreement).                                                                 

4 Improve skil ls and 

IMD education 
deprivation scores. 

FHSF grant offer approved. Close and 

established joint working with Uni of 
Derby and DCC (Library). Council 
already approved revised 
governance structure (Feb 21) 

1. Establishment of project Board with key stakeholders, subject to site purchase 

June 2022.                                                   

Ben Haywood 

– Building 
Control  
P’ship 

BCOP

1 

Opportunity to 

improve the Building 
Control  service 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 4 

DBCP will  provide a bi -monthly 

management report which details 
financial performance including the 
number of applications. sales and 
income. They also supply a bi -

monthly PR report detail ing 
marketing activity and details of 
significant applications  An annual 
Service Review and Update will  be 

provided at the beginning of each 
financial year, measuring DBCP 
performance against the Service 

Level Agreement. 
Agreed as part of the Contract 
arrangement which are now 
complete. 

SLA to be agreed as part of the proposal  

 

Elaine PWO Improved business Limited reporting function in the 1.New system specifications  include an improved reporting function 

P
age 56



  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  
Hallworth – 
Procure 

Workflow 

pp1 intell igence and 
reporting function 

 
Impact – 3 
Like – 4 

current system but an improved 
reporting function has been 

highlighted as an outline deliverable 
and is part of the critical success 
criteria  

2. Critical  success criteria includes an improved reporting function 2022-23  
 

Sarah Porru – 
HAZ 

 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 4 

1 Opportunity to 
access funding to 

address the condition 
of heritage buildings 
on the high street 

The level of funding from HE is 
significant and will provide the 

opportunity for a major injection of 
capital into the High Street. The 
funding will  provide a grant funding 

programme available to owners of 
historic properties to enhance these. 
There will  be a positive impact on 
the high street and retention of the 

council 's reputation to deliver 
heritage led regeneration projects. 
There will  be opportunities for 

cultural and community engagement 
projects. 

1. Building condition survey to assess current condition and grant projects - now 
completed 

2. Re-launch the scheme and publicity - May 2021 and ongoing 
3.Recruit Project Officer - Completed November 2020 
4.Set up Governance structure and grant giving body. Approved February 2021  

5.Monitor and evaluate - ongoing         
6. Project profile of spend and delivery revised to account for Covid 19 and the 
economic health of the high street. 

Nicola Kemp - 
Bankswood 
 

Both 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

2 Support a community 
group to access 
further external 

funding to enhance 
the site 

There are some limited funding 
options available to local councils. 

Explore funding opportunities that may be available that are appropriate to the 
site and can easily be accessed by the community group.  

3 Promoting physical 
activity with a range 
of external partners 

Further improvement works are 
planned at the site and these would 
all benefit people’s health and well -

being. 

The installation of the pump track will  promote interest from the local community 
and there is already a community group involved with the project. This will  provide 
a solid foundation for us to build upon and  

encourage activity opportunities and extended use of a well -managed open space 
David Smith – 
Glossop Halls 

1 To revitalise the 
buildings and provide 
them with financial 
sustainability 

 
Impact – 4 
Like - 3 

Monthly project board led by 
Executive Director. Support from 
external consultants Focus and 
engagement with the Creative Trust 

and local community. Procurement 
of Commercial Partner in progress  

Contract agreement with Commercial Partner. Progress with the Creative Trust 
regarding involvement and activities within the Town to compliment the facil ity. 

P
age 57



  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  
Sarah Porru – 
AHDP 

 
Both 
Impact – 5 

Like – 4 
 
 
 

 
 
Both 
Impact – 4 

Like - 4 

PLA.3 
(1) 

External funding to 
unlock housing 

delivery  
 

Working with HE through HIF 
programme to fund new 

infrastructure  

GFA signed and DoV agreed and further amends submitted. Member approval to 
proceed with project despite risks Oct 21. Seeking further member approval Feb 

22.  

PLA.3 
(2) 

Capital receipt 
through land disposal 
 

Land disposal and strategy agreed 
through AHDP.  

Land disposal agreed in principle with Hogshaws. Land disposal with 
Waterswallows less progressed - waiting offer.  

PLA.3 

(3) 

Improved access to 

Tongue lane Ind Est 

Proposed new link road from 

roundabout to Waterswallows 
development will  provide better 
access to Tongue Lane Industrial 

Estate. Waterswallows developer to 
provide link road east from 
roundabout to industrial estate 
access point.  

Legally binding agreements to be drafted to ensure developers fund link roads.  

PLA.3 

(5) 

Wider economic 

benefits  

The funding of the roundabout is 

based upon housing delivery and the 
wider economic benefits these bring. 
This is set out in the GFA. Failure to 
meet housing numbers could impact 

on funding.  

Legally binding agreements to be entered into between council and developers to 

ensure housing delivery.  

Ben Haywood 
– Land 
Charges 

LLCO
P1 

Opportunity to 
cleanse data and 
streamline the 
process 

 
Impact – 3 
Like - 4 

HMLR provide a service whereby the 
data can be sent and cleansed to 
assist with the preparation stage of 
the project. 

 

1. Data cleanse will  take place before the migration using the HMLR service (for 
Staffs Moorlands data ) 

Neil Rodgers - 

Norse 

ANO1 New IT systems – 

Connect 
 
Impact – 4 
Like - 5 

Ensure all  information requested is 

provided at the right time for 
development 

Develop IT process maps to ensure all  areas are identified. Once this has been 

identified, project plan will  identify key target dates for information. 

Nicola Kemp - 

Collective 

1 Reduction in missed 

bins 
 
Impact – 3 

GOSS online calendars have been 

designed with the info  residents 
need in mind to reduce chance of 
resident error re bin type/day 

Design  customer facing material focusing on the info residents need & get 

feedback 
 
Increase accuracy of events & resident comms - additional training has been 

P
age 58



  ALT Owner Ref Opportunity Controls Fruition Plans  
Like – 4 
 

 
IEG4 forms are be configured to 

prevent submission of missed bin 
form unless a genuine miss. Forms 
partially return list of contaminates - 

increases recycling education but 
could do more 
 
Bartec events have been developed 

to cover many scenarios, which will  
feed the IEG4 forms to prevent 
missed bins being submitted unless 
genuine 

delivered to ensure  drivers & supervisors are confident in the event logging 
process. Project team will  create additional events and automations to increase 

accuracy and remove need for manual updates   
 
Improve IEG4 form functionality for 'why has my bin not been emptied' to include 

more reasons / read job statuses - this is expected mid Feb  

2 Improved system 

integrations 
 
Impact – 4 

Like - 4 

Project team has improved technical 

capabilities & have developed an 
advanced understanding of the 
system capabilities with specialist 

technical skills  
 
GOSS online calendars  retrieve live 
schedule info and translate into easy 

to read/check calendars  
 
IEG4 forms retrieve LIVE relevant 
data from Bartec to prevent 

submission of inaccurate webforms, 
or customer contact that is 
unnecessary 

Identify the level of ongoing system & integration 'ownership' required to carry it 

forward post implementation to achieve project objectives, and change with the 
times as technology progresses post implementation. 
 

Steering group to highlight where enhancements of these integrations could 
improve successful operation via Enhanced use of Bartec,  GOSS +  IEG4 through 
API technology, and design service requests best fit to both the system and the 
service with user needs at forefront  

3 Off site hosting & 

futureproofing 
 
Impact – 2 
Like - 5 

Bartec being hosted means AES staff 

can access it from Cheshire East's 
networks as required, rather than via 
multiple connections into HPSM 
networks  

 
Flare will  not be removed from 
HPSM's server estate though as it is 
used by Environmental Health stil l  

Not expected to be moved off FLARE entirely until  the latter part of 2022, so none 

to mention at this stage 

P
age 59



   
 

P
age 60



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Annual Treasury Management Report 
2021/22 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Keith Pointon - Head of Finance 

Emily Bennetts – Finance  Business Partner  
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
(All Wards); 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Annual Treasury Management Report 
2021/22 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 
Treasury Management performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2021/22 is recommended to 

Council for approval. 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local 

Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury 
management activities for the year. 

 
3.2 The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2021/22 considers the following 

areas: 

 

 The Council’s capital expenditure, overall borrowing need for the year; 

 Compliance with Prudential Indicators, showing the outturn against those 

Indicators formally adopted in the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy; 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



  

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy and the economic 
environment during the year; 

 The Council’s borrowing outturn; 

 The Council’s investment portfolio and performance, including a summary 
on investments with Environmental, Social, Governance (ESG) positive 

links. 
 

3.3 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer confirms that borrowing was 
only undertaken for a capital purpose and the statutory borrowing limit (the 
authorised limit) was not breached. 

3.4 The main headlines include: 
 

 Capital expenditure in 2021/22 totalled £10.3million, largely funded by 
reserves, contributions and capital receipts, with the remainder creating a 
borrowing requirement of £553,153 wholly applicable to General Fund capital 

expenditure. 
 

 Total debt at 31st March 2022 amounted to £63.1million including loans from 
Public Works Loan Board and Market Loans. There was one maturing loan in 

the year of £3.7million. No new external borrowing or refinancing took place; 
nor was there any debt rescheduling. 
 

 Overall borrowing costs were £51,986 underspent against the budget, owing 
to an increase in the charge to the HRA and a £10,953 reduction in the 

general fund MRP charge. 
 

 The average daily investment during 2021/22 was £32.6million invested with a 

total of nine institutions, yielding £67,005 in investment income. A surplus of 
£26,715 was achieved against the budget due to the increase in the Bank of 

England base rate in quarter 4. 
 

 The average return achieved by the Council on its investment portfolio for the 

year was 0.21%. Year-end investments totalled £30.1million all internally 
managed by the Council’s Treasury Management Team. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1  An  effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 

Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the 
Council’s main priorities. 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2021/22. As such it is a statement of fact and there are no options 

to consider. 
 
6. Implications 

Page 62



  

 
6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 

None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 
Included throughout the report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 

None 
 

6.6 Climate Change 

 
Information on investments with Environmental, Social and 
Governance (ESG) links within the Investment portfolio is included 

in the report. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
None 

 
6.8 

 

Risk Assessment 

 
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with 
Treasury Management activity, not least the potential for loss of 

interest and/ or deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the 
services of external Treasury Management advisors, Link Asset 

Services (‘Link’). 
 
 

Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with 
the Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. 

That Strategy includes a number of risk management features such 
as the overriding priority that security of deposit takes precedence 
over return on investment. 

 
 

Martin Owen 
Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 

Page 63



  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22’  

Audit & Regulatory Committee February 2021 
 

Keith Pointon, Head of Finance 

Emily Bennetts, Finance Business Partner 
Keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
Emily.Bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 64



Appendix A 

 

 
 
 

Annual Treasury Management 
Report 

 

2021/22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2022 

Page 65



   

 

1. Introduction and Background 

 
1.1. The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 

2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual 
prudential and treasury indicators for the year. This report meets the requirements of 

both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 
1.2. During 2021/22 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should 

receive the following reports: 

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 16th February 2021) 

 a mid-year treasury update report (Council 12th October 2021) 

 an annual treasury report (this report). 
 

In addition, this Council has received quarterly treasury management update reports 
(Audit & Accounts Committee 23rd June 2021 and 9th February 2022). Scrutiny to all 

treasury management reports was provided by the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
before being reported to the full Council.  

 

1.3. The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 
scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities. This report provides details of 

the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s 
policies previously approved by Members.   
 

1.4. This report covers: 
 

 Capital expenditure and the overall borrowing need 

 The Council’s treasury position at the end of the year 

 Strategy & Economy for the year 

 Borrowing outturn  

 Investment performance & portfolio, including Ethical investing 

 
1.5. Treasury Limits and Treasury management and Prudential Indicators were set within 

the Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22.  The Council has complied with all 

indicators. Details of these are embedded throughout this report. 
 
2. The Council’s Capital Expenditure & Borrowing Requirement 2021/22 

 
2.1. The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 

may either be financed: 

 through the application of capital or revenue resources (including capital 

receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.); this form of financing does 
not impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 

 by external borrowing, where there is insufficient internal resource or where a 
decision is taken to finance expenditure externally. 

 
  

Page 66



   

 

2.2. Capital expenditure constitutes one of the required prudential indicators. The table 
below shows actual capital expenditure for 2021/22 and how this was financed: 
 

  
31st March 

2021 
2021/22 

31st March 
2022 

  Actual Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

General Fund £2,817,647 £8,399,090 £4,168,164 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) £3,731,138 £6,292,000 £6,180,822 

Total Capital expenditure £6,548,785 £14,691,090 £10,348,986 

Financed by:       

External contributions £1,088,727 £3,762,090 £2,439,465 

Capital & earmarked reserves £100,000  - £856,500 

Capital Receipts £218,049 £636,500 £1,019,249 

Minimum Repairs Reserve (HRA) £2,099,030 £2,099,030 £2,099,030 

HRA contribution £1,632,108 £4,192,970 £3,381,589 

Unfinanced capital 
expenditure/  
borrowing need 

£1,410,871 £4,000,500 £553,153 

* Subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing  

 
2.3. The decrease in the provisional outturn and associated borrowing need compared to 

the budget is largely owing to the re-profiling to future years of: AMP works 
(£2.2million), vehicle acquisitions (£1million), and expenditure on the Fairfield 
roundabout (£1m).  

 
2.4. The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR).  It represents the cumulative capital activity of the 
Council in the current and previous years which is as yet unfinanced, i.e. has not yet 
been paid for by revenue or other resources. 

 
2.5. The 2021/22 capital expenditure (provisional outturn) is largely funded by reserves, 

external contributions, capital receipts and the HRA contribution; the remainder has 
created a provisional outturn borrowing need of £553,153, which increases the CFR. 
This all relates to the general fund activity 

 
2.6. The Treasury Management team plans the Council’s cash position to ensure 

sufficient cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow requirements. This 
may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Public Works 
Loan Board or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the 

Council. 
 

2.7. The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely.  
Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to 

Page 67



   

 

revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual revenue 
charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to reduce the CFR.  This is 
effectively a repayment via revenue of the cumulative borrowing need. 

 
2.8. The CFR can also be reduced by the application of additional capital financing 

resources, such as unapplied capital receipts; or charging more than the statutory 
revenue charge (MRP) through a Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 
 

2.9. The Council’s 2021/22 MRP Policy was approved (as required by the Department of 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) guidance) as part of the Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement 2021/22 on 16th February 2021. 
 

2.10. The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential 
indicator. 
 

  
31st March 

2021 
2021/22 

31st March 
2022 

Capital Financing Requirement Actual Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

Opening balance £80,951,387 £80,871,024 £80,540,585 

Unfinanced capital expenditure/  
borrowing need 

£1,410,871 £4,000,500 £553,153 

Less MRP/VRP -£1,821,673 -£1,844,654 -£1,835,802 

Closing balance £80,540,585 £83,026,870 £79,257,936 

* Subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing  

 
2.11. Borrowing activity is constrained by Prudential Indicators for gross borrowing and the 

CFR, and by the Authorised Limit.  In order to ensure that borrowing levels are 

prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should 
ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed 

the total of the CFR in the current year (2021/22) plus the estimates of any additional 
CFR for the next two financial years. This essentially means that the Council is not 
borrowing to support revenue expenditure. The indicator allows the Council some 

flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs.  
 

2.12. The table below highlights the Council’s borrowing position against the CFR: 
 
 

  
31st March 

2022 
31st March 

2023 
31st March 

2024 

  Provisional Forecast* Forecast* 

Gross borrowing position £63,077,304 £69,877,304 £68,877,304 

CFR £79,257,936 £84,454,657 £85,874,483 

Over/ (under) borrowed -£16,180,632 -£14,577,353 -£16,997,179 

* Per MTFP February 2022, updated for current year provisional outturn borrowing need 

 

Page 68



   

 

2.13. The Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position of £16,180,632 as at 31st March 2022, 
therefore is complying with the prudential indicator. 

2.14. The Authorised Limit is set in the Treasury Management Strategy in advance of each 

year, as required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003; once set the Council does 
not have power to borrow above this level. The Operational Boundary, also set in the 

Treasury Management Strategy, is the expected borrowing position of the Council 
during the year. Periods where the actual position is either below or above the 
boundary are acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached. The table 

below shows the Council has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit 
and operational boundary. 

 
2.15. The  ‘financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream’ is used as an indicator to 

identify the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs, net of investment income) 

against the net revenue stream of the Council.  
 

  2021/22 
31st March 

2022 

  Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn* 

Authorised limit £92,460,000 £92,460,000 

Maximum gross borrowing position during the year £67,077,704 £66,825,404 

Operational boundary £89,960,000 £89,960,000 

Average gross borrowing position £66,951,554 £66,784,329 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream  16.61% 13.91% 

HRA Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  11.17% 11.40% 

 
  

Page 69



   

 

3. The Current Treasury Position 
 

3.1. The Council’s treasury management debt and investment position is organised by the 

treasury team in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, 
security for investments and to manage risks within all treasury management 
activities. Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are well established 

both through member reporting and through officer activity in accordance with the 
Council’s Treasury Management Practices. The table below shows the Council’s 

treasury position at the end of 2021/22 and a comparison with the previous year: 
 

 

  2021/22 2020/21 

  
Principal at 
31st March 

Average 
annual 

principal 

Average 
annual 
interest 

rate/ 
return 

Principal at 
31st March 

Average 
annual 

principal 

Average 
annual 
interest 

rate/ 
return 

Debt 

PWLB £50,277,304 £53,984,329 3.77% £54,025,404 £54,025,404 3.76% 

Market Loans £12,800,000 £12,800,000 4.57% £12,800,000 £12,800,000 4.57% 

Total £63,077,304 £66,784,329 3.92% £66,825,404 £66,825,404 3.92% 

Capital Financing 
Requirement* 

£79,257,936     £80,540,585     

Over/ (under) 
borrowed 

-£16,180,632     -£13,715,181     

*current year subject to change as Closure of Accounts process ongoing at time of writing  

              

Treasury 
management 
investments 

-£30,112,000 -£32,648,369 0.21% -£26,859,317 -£32,427,025 0.26% 

              

Net Debt/ £32,965,304     £39,966,087     

 

 
4. The 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy & Economic Conditions 

 

4.1. The expectation for interest rates amongst forecasters at the time of setting the 
treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that Bank Rate would remain at 

0.10% following the emergency cut at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic for the 
medium term and therefore returns on the Council’s balances would be very low, with 
borrowing rates similarly depressed. 

 
4.2. This was indeed the case for much of the year with the average interest rate 

achieved in the first three quarters being 0.16%, boosted only by the Council’s notice 
accounts. Towards the end of the year, with growing inflationary pressures, the Bank 
of England raised the base rate three times: to 0.25% on 16 th December 2021; 0.50% 

on 3rd February 2022; and 0.75% on 17th March 2022. The impact of this began to 
trickle through to the Council’s investments and notice and instant access accounts 

Page 70



   

 

resulting in an average investment income in quarter four of 0.33%, increasing the 
overall average for the year to 0.21%. 

 

4.3. Cash balances remained high during the year whilst the Council was in receipt of 
Central Government funding to deliver various schemes to support residents and 

businesses during the Covid-19 pandemic and the current increasing inflation 
climate. The counterparty limits in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 
2021/22 were set to be flexible to respond to this situation specifically; reporting any 

instance where the limits were exceeded in the quarterly treasury management 
update reports, as opposed to generally extending the limits which would have 

reduced the controls over counterparty risk. There were two such instances: the 
current account limit was exceed by 0.18% for 1 day in September; and a maximum 
2.5% for 4 days in November 2021.  

 
5. Borrowing Outturn 

 
5.1. External borrowing activity during 2021/22 and the maturity profile at year end are 

shown in the tables below: 

 

Amount Lender 
Interest 

Rate 
Term Month 

£66,825,404 External borrowing 1
st

 April 2021       

Matured Loans     Maturing 

£3,748,100 PWLB 2.40% 
10 

years 
March 

£3,748,100 Total       

          

New Loans     Starting 

£0         

£0 Total        

          

£3,748,100 Net decrease in external borrowing       

£63,077,304 External borrowing 31
st

 March 2022       

£40,905,632 HRA Share 64.85%       

£22,171,672 General Fund Share 35.15%       

          

  Average borrowing during the year       

£53,984,329 PWLB 3.77%     

£12,800,000 Local Authority Loans 4.57%     

£66,784,329 Total 3.92%     

£43,309,637 HRA Share 64.85%       

£23,474,692 General Fund Share 35.15%       

 
5.2. Attention must be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure maturity dates 

are evenly spread and the Council is not exposed to a substantial re-financing 
requirement at any one time, when interest rates are high. The graph below 

illustrates the maturity profile of the current portfolio of loans.   

Page 71



   

 

 
*NB: in accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of 
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.  

 

Maturity structure of borrowing 

Fixed rate Variable rate 

Upper limit 
set 2021/22 

As at 
31st 

March 
2022 

Upper limit 
set 2021/22 

As at 
31st 

March 
2022 

under 12 months 60% 7% 100% 0% 

12 months to 2 years 60% 0% 50% 0% 

2 to 5 years 60% 0% 0% 0% 

5 to 10 years 60% 6% 0% 0% 

10 to 20 years 

90% 

12% 0% 0% 

20 to 30 years 22% 0% 0% 

30 to 40 years 38% 0% 0% 

40 to 50 years 15% 0% 0% 

 
5.3. No new external borrowing was taken during 2021/22; the £553,153 borrowing 

requirement was instead funded using internal resources available at the time.  There 
was one maturing PWLB loan of £3.7million which had been held for 10 years. There 

has been no refinancing or rescheduling of loans during the year. The Council has 
not borrowed in advance of need. 

 

5.4. Currently the cost of potential new external borrowing is greater than the interest 
income lost through reduced investment opportunities resulting from this internal 

borrowing. The practice of avoiding new borrowing by utilising spare cash balances 
has served well over recent years in terms of making net savings on financing costs. 
However, this is kept under constant review, especially where there is an expectation 

of rate rises, to avoid higher borrowing costs in the future. 
 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Less than
1 year*

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50

years

Debt Maturity Profile 

Page 72



   

 

5.5. The total borrowing costs achieved a saving of £51,986 against the budget; £41,033 
is due to a greater charge to the HRA under the one pool approach of borrowing, with 
the remaining £10,953 being due to a smaller MRP charge than budgeted. 

 
6. Investment Performance & Portfolio 

 
6.1. The investment performance of the Treasury Management function is dependent 

upon a number of factors, including the size of available investment balances; the 

market interest rates available; the timing of capital spend; the restrictions placed on 
the Council by its approved Lending List. 

 
6.2. The Council achieved an average interest rate of 0.21% on its investment portfolio: 

 

  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2021-22 

Long term investments > 364 days  n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Short term investments < 364 days 0.31% 0.32% 0.30% 0.44% 0.34% 

Instant Access Cash 0.01% 0.01% 0.02% 0.21% 0.06% 

Total 0.17% 0.17% 0.15% 0.33% 0.21% 

            

Bank of England base rate at end of period 0.10% 0.10% 0.25% 0.75% 0.75% 

 
 
 

6.3. The Council manages its investments in-house, investing only with institutions that 

meet the Council’s approved minimum lending criteria. The Lending List is 
constructed based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit agencies 

supplemented by additional market data, using the Link Creditworthiness analysis 
(see Annex A for lending limits applied in 2021/22). 
 

6.4. Money was invested during the year with nine institutions. All investments were 
placed in line with the Council’s approved lending limits. The table below summarises 

the institutions that the Council invested funds with during the financial year. It also 
indicates the average daily investment, interest earned and the associated interest 
rates. Interest rates vary depending on the length and timing of investments. The 

investment funds include those held in the Council’s instant access accounts.  The 
average daily investment during 2021/22 was £32.6m. 

 

Financial Institution 
ESG 
linked 

Country 
of 
Domicile 

Duration 
Interest 
earned 

Average 
daily 
investment 

Rate 
of 
return 

Money market funds No UK Instant access £2,675 £7,949,589 0.03% 

Santander No UK 
95 & 180 day 
notice 

£37,231 £6,319,605 0.59% 

NatWest Bank No UK Instant access £546 £5,460,758 0.01% 

Barclays Yes UK 
65 and 95 day 
notice 

£13,963 £5,208,219 0.27% 

Page 73



   

 

Lloyds Bank No UK 95 day notice £1,501 £3,002,840 0.05% 

Standard Chartered Yes UK 90-184 days £3,366 £1,852,055 0.18% 

Bank of Scotland No UK Instant access £4,863 £1,569,862 0.31% 

Handelsbanken No UK Instant access £2,356 £1,225,167 0.19% 

Nationwide Building Society No UK 92 to 153 days £433 £54,795 0.79% 

NatWest Bank Certificate of 
Deposit 

No UK 184 days £71 £5,479 1.30% 

Total       £67,005 £32,648,369 0.21% 

              

ESG proportion 21.63%     £17,329 £7,060,274 0.25% 

Barclays 

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which covers ‘a variety of 

thematic projects including energy efficiency, renewable energy, green transport, 
sustainable food, agriculture and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas 
emission reduction’. 

Standard Chartered 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and Sustainable Product 

Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health and well -being; 
quality education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean 
energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and infrastructure; 

reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and communities; responsible consumption 
and production; climate action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong 
institutions; partnerships for the goals'. 

 

6.5. The average maturity of investment during the year was necessarily short to allow for 
continuing uncertainties over cashflow during the Covid-19 situation. The budget was 

set with an expectation of very low interest rate returns during the year. The 
investment income for the year was £67,005 against the budget of £40,290. The 
£26,715 surplus has been achieved as a result of the base rate rises and consequent 

increased interest earning investment opportunities in quarter 4. 
 

6.6. As agreed, no interest has been charged during the year on the £250,000 loan to the 
Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust. 
 

6.7. A Notice of Motion relating to Climate Change was presented and supported at Full 
Council on 16th February 2021 which has implications on the Council’s treasury 

management investment portfolio. Progress continues to be monitored in each 
Treasury Management update report. Link are developing a potential service which 
could assist the Council in achieving these aims.  

 
Notice of Motion Action Action Update / Response 

Develop a plan by September 2021 to 
cease investing in companies involved 
directly or indirectly with the fossil fuel 
industry.  

In order to put a plan into place to cease investing / rep lace investment 
funds, the Council would need to have a mechanism in place to easily 
assess investment funds in order to determine which meet the criteria. 
The criteria would also need to be established – this will possibly need to be 
jointly agreed via the Audit Committee / Climate Change working group.  
This criteria can then be inputted into a scoring mechanism to determine 
eligible funds. 
Ultimately, the Council would need to ensure that when investing, the 

Page 74



   

 

principles of SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
 
Link, the Council’s Treasury advisors, are currently developing a service 
which will be a vital input into the suitability assessment of any potential 
investment in terms of its Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 
merits. This could be either as an overlay to the creditworthiness system 
which protects the SLY criteria with a general score weighting; or a more 
detailed service with specific focuses to suit the Council’s objectives.  
We are awaiting a survey from Link where we will have the opportunity to 
assign relevance scores to each ESG risk factor which will feed into the 
service’s outputs. These relevance scores will be informed by the criteria to 
be established as discussed above. 
 

Add a clear statement to their published 
strategy, at the next review date, 
regarding their approach to investments 
at risk from climate change, including 
those at risk due to the actions of other 
investors and governments. 

A statement in regard to investments and the increased use of ESG 
investments particularly was included in the 2021/22 Treasury Management 
Strategy.  This will be updated and enhanced annually and will, in future, 
incorporate any changes made to the creditworthiness systems as detailed 
above. 

Draw up a plan to replace HPBC’s 
investment funds which include 
environmentally harmful investments 
with investment funds that have positive 
societal and environmental benefits, by 
September 2021. 

As above – see first action response. 
 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the principles of 
SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be defined, with 
input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change working group as 
appropriate.  

Replace HPBC’s environmentally 
harmful investments and funds with 
investments that have positive societal 
and environmental benefits, towards 
achieving a portfolio of assets with net 
zero carbon emissions by 2025 (with 
consideration of the council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and principals 
around security, liquidity and yield 
priorities when investing funds). 

As above – see first action response. 
 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the principles of 
SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be defined, with 
input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change working group as 
appropriate. 
 

Explore non-financial investments, such 
as in renewable energy generation 
 

This will need to be assessed as a specific project as part of the Climate 
Change action plan, with a full business case required to determine viability.  
This action point will need to be monitored outside Treasury Management 
reporting, in the appropriate arena for the projects undertaken. 

Include risks associated with specific 
types of investment, such as in 
extractive industries, in its risk 
assessments 
 

Many of the counterparties regularly used by Councils do not have ESG 
“scores” assigned to them as yet.  It is growing, but by no means universal.  
Once Link have developed their enhanced creditworthiness service to 
incorporate a scoring system for ESG investments, the Audit Committee / 
Climate Change working group will need to work through how funds will be 
assessed, both at the selection stage and then monitoring thereafter. 

Include progress on Environmental, 
Social and Governance investing in 
regular reports to the Audit and 
Regulatory Committee.    
 

The Treasury Management update reports and Treasury Management 
Strategy now include specific updates in regard to ESG investments. 

Write to the Derbyshire Pensions and 
Investment Committee requesting that 
they divest pension funds from 
investment funds that include fossil fuels 
by 2025. 
 

Response received from the Chair of the Pensions & Investment 
Committee: 
 
The Fund’s Climate Strategy was approved by Committee in November 
2020, following consultation with the Pension Fund’s stakeholders.  It sets 
out support for the Paris Agreement and includes clear targets for reducing 
the carbon emissions of the whole investment portfolio and for increasing 
investment in low carbon and sustainable investments.  A Responsible 
Investment Framework was also approved at the same time, setting out the 
Pension Fund’s commitment to integrating Environmental, Social and 
Governance factors into investment decisions and engaging with 
companies to influence behaviour and enhance value, influence that would 
be lost through a divestment approach.  Collaborative and co-ordinated 
engagement with other like-minded investors, has the potential to drive 
positive changes to companies’ business models as they adapt for the 
transition to a low carbon economy. 
 

Page 75



   

 

The Pension Fund’s Climate Strategy includes a target for reducing the 
carbon footprint of the Fund’s listed equity portfolio by at least 30% by the 
end of 2025 and a target to invest at least 30% of the Fund’s portfolio in low 
carbon and sustainable investments by the end of 2025.  These targets will 
be reviewed on at least a three yearly basis.  I am pleased to note that the 
first phase of increasing the equity allocation to sustainable and low carbon 
investments took place earlier this year, with further transitions planned for 
later this year.  Also, Committee recently approved a further commitment to 
a renewable energy infrastructure fund which will help towards the target of 
having 50% of the Fund’s 10% allocation to infrastructure invested in 
renewable energy assets.  These assets will include investments in: 
onshore wind; offshore wind; solar; hydro; and battery storage.  

 
Progress against the targets set out in the Fund’s Climate Strategy will be 
presented to the Pensions and Investments Committee, and the Pension 
Fund’s approach to managing the risks and opportunities presented by 
climate change will stay firmly on Committee’s agenda.   

 

6.8. Investments held at the 31st March 2022 are shown in the table below. All 
investments are for a period of one year or less: 

 

Financial Institution 
ESG 

linked 

Country 
of 

Domicile 

Principal 
invested at 
31st March 
2022 

Fixed/ 
variable 

Santander No UK £6,300,000 Variable 

Barclays Yes UK £5,200,000 Variable 

Money market funds No UK £4,800,000 Variable 

Handelsbanken No UK £3,650,000 Variable 

Standard Chartered Yes UK £3,000,000 Fixed 

Lloyds Bank No UK £3,000,000 Variable 

Nationwide Building Society No UK £2,000,000 Fixed 

NatWest Bank No UK £1,162,000 Variable 

NatWest Bank Certificate of 
Deposit 

No UK £1,000,000 Fixed 

Total     £30,112,000   

          

ESG proportion 19.80%   £5,962,000   

 

  2021/22 
31st March 

2022 

  
Treasury 

Management 
Strategy 

Actual 

Principal sums invested >365 days  £5,000,000 £0 

 
 

Page 76



   

 

ANNEX A 

 
Current Lending Limits 

 

  UK International 

  Individual Group Individual 

Category (per Link's 
creditworthiness 
model) 

Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

Principal 
Limit 

Principal 
Limit 

Maximum 
Length 

NatWest (the Council's 
main bank account) 

£8.75m 1 year n/a n/a n/a 

Money market funds £8.75m 1 year £13.30m n/a n/a 

Yellow £8.75m 5 years n/a n/a n/a 

Purple £8.75m 2 years £13.30m £7.00m 2 years 

Orange £7.00m 1 year £10.50m £6.30m 1 year 

Red £6.30m 6 months £9.45m £5.25m 6 months 

Green £5.25m 100 days £8.05m £4.20m 100 days 

No colour - Not to be used   - Not to be used 

Local Authority £2.00m 1 year £8.75m n/a n/a 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Update 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner  

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
(All Wards); 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid-Year Update 

Report, 31st May 2022. 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 
Treasury Management performance in 2022/23 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 31st May 
2022. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management, which recommends that members be updated on treasury 
management activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports). 

 
3.2 This report comprises the following: 
 

 The latest interest rate forecast; 

 The current investment portfolio and investment income projected for the 

year; 

 Projected borrowing requirements to support the capital programme with 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



  

associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2022/23. 

3.3 The main headlines are: 
 

 The Bank of England base rate increase from 0.75% to 1.00% in May 
2022. 
 

 Due to subsequent increases in investment interest rates, a surplus of 
£113,270 is forecast against the investment interest income budget. 

 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £27.6million spread across 

seven separate institutions as at 31st May 2022. 
 

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st May was £63.1million at an 

average annual borrowing rate of 4.01%.   
 

 The borrowing costs budget forecasts a total saving of £20,900 to the 
general fund and an increased charge of £25,180 to the HRA. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 

Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 
Council’s main priorities. 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak Borough 
Council for 2022/23 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is a statement 
of fact and there are no options. 

 
 

Martin Owen 
Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 
 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2022/23’ (Audit & 
Regulatory Committee, February 2022) 

Keith Pointon, Head of Finance 
keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
Emily Bennetts, Finance Business Partner 
Emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 80



  

Appendix A 
          
            

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Treasury Management Update  

31
st

 May 2022 
 

 
 
1. Introduction  

 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
3. Investment Activity 

 

4. Borrowing Position 
 

5. Prudential Indicators 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 81



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. This report is delivered in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management, 
which recommends that members be updated on treasury management 

activities regularly (annual, mid-year and quarterly reports). 
 

1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 
treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 

management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
are reported to full Council. 

 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/23 was 
approved by Council on 22nd February 2022. This report details treasury 

management performance up to the 31st May 2022 and projects forward for the 
remainder of the financial year. 

 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 

base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast: 

% 
Jun-
22 

Sep-
22 

Dec-
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun-
23 

Sep-
23 

Dec-
23 

Mar-
24 

Jun-
24 

Sep-
24 

Dec-
24 

Mar-
25 

Jun-
25 

Bank Rate 1.25 1.50 1.75 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

10r PWLB 
rate 

2.80 2.80 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.90 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.80 

 
2.2. The Bank of England base rate increased to 1.00% on 5 th May 2022 (from 

0.75% previously). The medium term forecast shows continuing rises 
throughout 2022, peaking at 2.00%, then a small reduction in the latter half of 

2024 to 1.75%. The forecast will be reviewed by Link during the year as they 
comment that financial markets are pricing in 2.50% by April 2023.  
 

2.3. The Council’s investment income budget was set against a much more modest 
forecast with base rate only reaching 0.75% by the end of 2022/23, therefore it 

is likely there will be surpluses achieved against the budget.   
 

2.4. Forecast PWLB rates are also greater than were anticipated at budget setting 

and the Local Authority market will be impacted by all these factors plus the 
levels of liquidity in the market which may be returning to more normal trends as 

the levels of grant cash flowing through Councils from central government to 
businesses and residents potentially reduce. 

Page 82



  

 
3. Investment Activity  

 

3.1. The Council has budgeted to receive £103,670 in investment income in 
2022/23, based on the modest interest rate rise forecast as described above. At 

this early stage in the year a surplus of £113,270 is forecast against the budget. 
 

3.2. The budget includes interest receivable from the £250,000 loan to the Buxton 

Crescent Heritage Trust as part of the Crescent development at a rate of 6%, 
which is to be reviewed. 
 

3.3. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria as detailed in the 

Treasury Management Strategy for the year; and investment priorities of 
Security of Capital, Liquidity and Yield (SLY). The Council’s investment portfolio 

at 31st May 2022 totalled £27,599,000: 
 

Counterparty 
Country 

of 
Domicile 

Amount 
Interest rate 

at end of 
period 

Maturity 
period 

Link 
counterparty 

limit 

Santander UK £6,300,000 0.87% 180 days 6 months 

Barclays UK £5,200,000 0.75-0.80% 65-95 days 6 months 

Standard Chartered UK £4,000,000 0.25-1.62% 
92-184 

days 
6 months 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

UK £4,000,000 0.79-1.25% 
153-154 

days 
6 months 

Handelsbanken UK £3,650,000 0.59% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Money Market 
Funds 

UK £2,950,000 0.89% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

NatWest Bank 
Certificate of 
Deposit 

UK £1,000,000 1.30% 184 days 12 months 

NatWest Bank UK £499,000 0.10% 
instant 
access 

12 months 

Total   £27,599,000     
  

ESG proportion of 
portfolio 

33.33% £9,200,000       

Barclays 

Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which covers ‘a 
variety of thematic projects including energy efficiency, renewable energy, 
green transport, sustainable food, agriculture and forestry, waste 
management and greenhouse gas emission reduction’. 

Standard Chartered 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and Sustainable 
Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero hunger; good health 
and well-being; quality education; gender equality; clean water and sanitation; 
affordable and clean energy; decent work and economic growth; industry, 
innovation and infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 
communities; responsible consumption and production; climate action; l ife 
below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong institutions; partnerships 
for the goals'. 

Page 83



  

 
3.4. A Notice of Motion relating to Climate Change was presented and supported at 

Full Council on 16th February 2021 which has implications on the Council’s 

treasury management investment portfolio. The Action points and responses 
from this are included at Annex A. Link continue to work on a potential service 

they may be able to offer to the Council to assist in achieving its aims. The 
treasury management team consider any new investment opportunities with 
ESG links where available and appropriate with regard to the SLY principals; 

though no new ESG linked products have emerged in the local authority market 
recently. 

 
4. Borrowing Position 

 

4.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 
Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  

Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. 

 
4.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st May 2022 is £63,077,304, as 

detailed in the table below. There are no maturities due during the year: 
 

 

Lender 
External 

Borrowing 
Average 

Interest Rate 
Maturity period 

Public Works Loan Board £50,277,304 3.87% between 4 and 40 years 

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 1 and 45 years 

Total £63,077,304 4.01%  

 

4.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£92,956,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£95,456,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing available to the 

Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of borrowing is within 
prudential limits. 
 

4.4. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt with 
£6.8million external borrowing mid-year to fund the general fund capital 

expenditure. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing thus far during the current year 
The Council also continues to maintain a level of internal borrowing as 
anticipated.  

 
4.5. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby investments 

and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional income and 
expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The Council has 
budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of £1,711,950 to the 

general fund and £1,629,210 to the HRA in 2022/23. Charges to the HRA are 
forecast to be a net £25,180 greater, with additional interest receivable by the 

HRA (from increased interest rates) offset by a larger share of the interest 
payable per the current share of the pool. External borrowing costs are forecast 
to be increased by £23,590 if mid-year borrowing takes place at forecast 

interest rates. This is offset in part by a £19,310 smaller MRP charge in the 
year. This represents an overall underspend on the general fund of £20,900. 

Page 84



  

 
4.6. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally 

borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, 

considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any 
borrowings taken. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the 

loans to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not 
exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when 
interest rates are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current 

loans. 
 

 
 

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBO’s is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of 
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65. 

 

4.7. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 

degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the risk.  
The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for debt 

rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council. 
 

4.8. No rescheduling has taken place during 2022/23 to date.  The Council will work 

with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking account of 
the premium the Council would expect to pay on early redemption compared to 
the potential interest savings.   

 
4.9. The Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 included in its Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP) Policy Statement a change in the method of calculating MRP 
to a straight line method over 50 years for historic supported borrowing incurred 
before 1 April 2008. There was no change to unsupported borrowing from 1 

April 2008 which continues to be calculated using the ‘Asset Life Method’. The 
Committee asked for more detail on this change to be included in this, the next 

treasury management update report. A briefing note is included at Annex B. 
 
 

 
 
 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

Less than
1 year*

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50

years

Debt Maturity Profile 

Page 85



  

5. Prudential Indicators 

 
5.1. All treasury management operations have been conducted in full compliance 

with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and within the treasury 
management and prudential indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement 2022/23. The Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer reports 
that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with 
these indictors. 

 
  

Page 86



  

Annex A 
 

Notice of Motion Action Action Update / Response 
Develop a plan by September 2021 to 
cease investing in companies involved 
directly or indirectly with the fossil fuel 
industry.  

In order to put a plan into place to cease investing / replace investment 
funds, the Council would need to have a mechanism in place to easily 
assess investment funds in order to determine which meet the criteria. 
The criteria would also need to be established – this will possibly need to be 
jointly agreed via the Audit Committee / Climate Change working group.  
This criteria can then be inputted into a scoring mechanism to determine 
eligible funds. 
Ultimately, the Council would need to ensure that when investing, the 
principles of SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
 
Link, the Council’s Treasury advisors , are currently developing a service 
which will be a vital input into the suitability assessment of any potential 
investment in terms of its Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 
merits. This could be either as an overlay to the creditworthiness system 
which protects the SLY criteria with a general score weighting; or a more 
detailed service with specific focuses to suit the Council’s objectives.  
We are awaiting a survey from Link where we will have the opportunity to 
assign relevance scores to each ESG risk factor which will feed into the 
service’s outputs. These relevance scores will be informed by the criteria to 
be established as discussed above. 
 

Add a clear statement to their published 
strategy, at the next review date, 
regarding their approach to investments 
at risk from climate change, including 
those at risk due to the actions of other 
investors and governments. 

A statement in regard to investments and the increased use of ESG 
investments particularly was included in the 2021/22 Treasury Management 
Strategy.  This will be updated and enhanced annually and will, in future, 
incorporate any changes made to the creditworthiness systems as detailed 
above. 

Draw up a plan to replace HPBC’s 
investment funds which include 
environmentally harmful investments 
with investment funds that have positive 
societal and environmental benefits, by 
September 2021. 

As above – see first action response. 
 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the principles of 
SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be defined, with 
input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change working group as 
appropriate.  

Replace HPBC’s environmentally 
harmful investments and funds with 
investments that have positive societal 
and environmental benefits, towards 
achieving a portfolio of assets with net 
zero carbon emissions by 2025 (with 
consideration of the council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and principals 
around security, liquidity and yield 
priorities when investing funds). 

As above – see first action response. 
 
The Council would need to ensure that when investing, the principles of 
SLY (security, liquidity, yield) are accounted for primarily.  
Positive societal and environmental benefits would need to be defined, with 
input from the Audit Committee/ Climate Change working group as 
appropriate. 
 

Explore non-financial investments, such 
as in renewable energy generation 
 

This will need to be assessed as a specific project as part of the Climate 
Change action plan, with a full business case required to determine viability.  
This action point will need to be monitored outside Treasury Management 
reporting, in the appropriate arena for the projects undertaken. 

Include risks associated with specific 
types of investment, such as in 
extractive industries, in its risk 
assessments 
 

Many of the counterparties regularly used by Councils do not have ESG 
“scores” assigned to them as yet.  It is growing, but by no means universal.  
Once Link have developed their enhanced creditworthiness service to 
incorporate a scoring system for ESG investments, the Audit Committee / 
Climate Change working group will need to work through how funds will be 
assessed, both at the selection stage and then monitoring thereafter. 

Include progress on Environmental, 
Social and Governance investing in 
regular reports to the Audit and 
Regulatory Committee.    
 

The Treasury Management update reports and Treasury Management 
Strategy now include specific updates in regard to ESG investments. 

Write to the Derbyshire Pensions and 
Investment Committee requesting that 
they divest pension funds from 
investment funds that include fossil fuels 
by 2025. 

Response received from the Chair of the Pensions & Investment 
Committee: 
 
The Fund’s  Climate Strategy was approved by Committee in November 
2020, following consultation with the Pension Fund’s stakeholders.  It sets 

Page 87



  

 out support for the Paris Agreement and includes clear targets for reducing 
the carbon emissions of the whole investment portfolio and for increasing 
investment in low carbon and sustainable investments.  A Responsible 
Investment Framework was also approved at the same time, setting out the 
Pension Fund’s commitment to integrating Environmental, Social and 
Governance factors into investment decisions and engaging with 
companies to influence behaviour and enhance value, influence that would 
be lost through a divestment approach.  Collaborative and co-ordinated 
engagement with other like-minded investors, has the potential to drive 
positive changes to companies’ business models as they adapt for the 
transition to a low carbon economy. 
 
The Pension Fund’s Climate Strategy includes a target for reducing the 
carbon footprint of the Fund’s listed equity portfolio by at least 30% by the  
end of 2025 and a target to invest at least 30% of the Fund’s portfolio in low 
carbon and sustainable investments by the end of 2025.  These targets will 
be reviewed on at least a three yearly basis.  I am pleased to note that the 
first phase of increasing the equity allocation to sustainable and low carbon 
investments took place earlier this year, with further transitions planned for 
later this year.  Also, Committee recently approved a further commitment to 
a renewable energy infrastructure fund which will help towards the target of 
having 50% of the Fund’s 10% allocation to infrastructure invested in 
renewable energy assets.  These assets will include investments in: 
onshore wind; offshore wind; solar; hydro; and battery storage.  

 
Progress against the targets set out in the Fund’s Climate Strategy will be 
presented to the Pensions and Investments Committee, and the Pension 
Fund’s approach to managing the risks and opportunities presented by 
climate change will stay firmly on Committee’s agenda.   

 
  

Page 88



  

Annex B 
 
Briefing Note to Audit & Regulatory Committee: 

 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Application 2022/23 

 

1. The application of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is the method by which 

Councils are required to set aside an element of their revenues each year as a 

provision for debt repayment; this in turn reduces the Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR) which is the cumulative capital expenditure which has not 

yet been funded by capital or revenue resources.  

 
2. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2022/23, as presented at 

and recommended to Full Council at Audit & Regulatory Committee 9 February 

2022, includes in its MRP Policy Statement: for historic supported borrowing 

incurred before 1 April 2008, the Council will apply a straight line method over 

50 years; and for unsupported borrowing from 1 April 2008 (including finance 

leases), the Council will apply the ‘Asset Life Method’ under which MRP is 

based on the estimated life of the asset for which the borrowing is undertaken. 

These provide a reduction in the borrowing need over the asset’s life.  

 
3. As this represented a change from the previous year’s MRP policy in respect of 

historic supported borrowing incurred before 1 April 2008, more detail is 

provided here about the change in method. 

 
4. Comparison of MRP methods: 

 

4.1. The previous method used was an MRP charge of 4% on the remaining 

balance of historic supported borrowing each year, i.e. a ‘reducing balance’ 

(shown in the table below in column c). The new adopted method is a straight 

line equal charge of MRP in each year for 50 years (shown in the table in 

column d). The table shows that the reducing balance (c) method takes much 

longer to ‘repay’ the historic supported borrowing than the straight line method 

(d). After 50 years, where the straight line method (d) has repaid the debt in full, 

under the reducing balance method (c), 13% of the debt remains and would not 

be repaid in full until after more than 100 years. This place burdens on future 

tax payers for much longer than the straight line method (d). 

 
4.2. Column e shows the increase or decrease in MRP when comparing the two 

methods side by side and what represents savings in the revenue budget for 

MRP from year 1- 17 and from year 51 onwards. These increases/ decreases 

are then shown as a net present value (NPV) in column f using a discount of 

3.5% (this is the discount rate used in the HM Treasury Green Book). This NPV 

forecasts what those increases and decreases will be worth in the future taking 

in to account the ‘time value of money’, ie because of the effects of inflation, £1 

in the future is worth less than £1 today. Therefore although from year 19 to 50 

the MRP charge will be greater in cash terms under the new method, the value 

Page 89



  

of that increase will be less in real terms (NPV) and represent a saving to the 

Council and, as a result, to taxpayers of £519,000 over the full period. 

a b c d e f 

Year Financial year 

4% 
reducing 

balance 
method 

50 year 
straight 

line 
method 

Increase/ 
(decrease) 

in MRP 

NPV at 

3.5% 

    £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

1 2022/23 325 162 (162) (157) 

2 2023/24 312 162 (149) (139) 

3 2024/25 299 162 (137) (123) 

4 2025/26 287 162 (125) (109) 

5 2026/27 276 162 (113) (95) 

6 2027/28 265 162 (102) (83) 

7 2028/29 254 162 (92) (72) 

8 2029/30 244 162 (82) (62) 

9 2030/31 234 162 (72) (53) 

10 2031/32 225 162 (62) (44) 

11 2032/33 216 162 (54) (37) 

12 2033/34 207 162 (45) (30) 

13 2034/35 199 162 (37) (23) 

14 2035/36 191 162 (29) (18) 

15 2036/37 183 162 (21) (13) 

16 2037/38 176 162 (14) (8) 

17 2038/39 169 162 (7) (4) 

18 2039/40 162 162 0 0 

19 2040/41 156 162 7 3 

20 2041/42 149 162 13 6 

21 2042/43 143 162 19 9 

22 2043/44 138 162 25 12 

23 2044/45 132 162 30 14 

24 2045/46 127 162 35 15 

25 2046/47 122 162 40 17 

26 2047/48 117 162 45 19 

27 2048/49 112 162 50 20 

28 2049/50 108 162 54 21 

29 2050/51 104 162 59 22 

30 2051/52 99 162 63 22 

31 2052/53 95 162 67 23 

32 5053/54 92 162 71 24 

33 2054/55 88 162 74 24 

34 2055/56 84 162 78 24 

35 2056/57 81 162 81 24 

36 2057/58 78 162 85 24 

37 2058/59 75 162 88 25 

38 2059/60 72 162 91 25 

39 2060/61 69 162 93 24 

40 2061/62 66 162 96 24 

41 2062/63 63 162 99 24 

42 2063/64 61 162 101 24 

43 2064/65 58 162 104 24 

44 2065/66 56 162 106 23 

Page 90



  

45 2066/67 54 162 108 23 

46 2067/68 52 162 111 23 

47 2068/69 50 162 113 22 

48 2069/70 48 162 115 22 

49 2070/71 46 162 117 22 

50 2071/72 44 162 118 21 

            

 

Years 51-100 917 0 (917) (98) 

Years 100+ 137   (137)   

            

  TOTAL 8,115 8,115 0 (519) 

 
5. Prudent application of MRP: 

 

5.1. The overriding requirement regarding MRP in the Local Government Act 2003 

and the 2018 guidance issued by MHCLG, now DLUHC, is that the Council 

must set a prudent provision (MRP) which ensures that debt is repaid over a 

period that is reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital 

expenditure provides benefits. 

 
5.2. This change therefore supports this notion as the supported historic debt will be 

repaid in a much shorter time period than under the previous method of MRP 

calculation. 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

2021/22 Internal Audit Periodic Report 
February 2022 to May 2022 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 

Finance 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

John Leak – Head of Audit 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
Non-Specific 

 
Appendices Attached: 

Appendix 1 - Audit Reports Issued Between 1st February 2022 and 31st May 
2022 
Appendix 2 - Internal Audit 2021/22 Progress Information as at 31st May 2022 

Appendix 3 - 2020/21 Audit Recommendations Implementation 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 

control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 

Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 
 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this report. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2021/22 financial 
year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, 

the number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and where 
applicable, implemented by management. 

 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



  

3.2 Due to the diversion of audit resources to support the corporate response to 
the administration of the various Government business grants support 
schemes and a staff secondment, the Audit Plan for 2021/22 has been 

amended and will take longer to complete than originally planned. 
 

3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 88% of 2021/22 
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal 

Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they 
will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted that it is the 

responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 
 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money.   

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 
 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

None John Leak 
Head of Audit 

john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

  

Page 94



  

6. Detail 
 
6.1 Introduction 

 
6.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2021/22 financial 
year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, 
the number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and where 

applicable, implemented by management. 
 

6.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual risk 
assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2021/22 was agreed by this 
Committee at the 23rd June 2021 meeting. The Internal Audit service also 

carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is usually built 
in. This unplanned work consists mainly of internal control consultancy work 

and special investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity. 
 
 
6.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations 

 

6.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st February 2022 to 
31st May 2022 is shown in the table below. Further details of these audits 
outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are shown in Appendix 

1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Operations Housing 
Repairs & 
Maintenance 

0 5 5 Limited 

Environmental 
Health 

Licensing 

 

0 0 5 Satisfactory 

Communities & 
Climate Change 

Strategic 
Partnerships 

0 3 6 Satisfactory 

Development 
Services 

Building 
Control 
Partnership 

0 6 6 Limited 

Finance 

 

Sundry 
Debtors 

0 0 1 Substantial 

Finance 

 

Treasury 
Management 

0 1 1 Satisfactory 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

Council Tax 0 1 1 Satisfactory 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

NNDR 0 1 5 Satisfactory 

 
 

Page 95



  

Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Finance General 
Ledger 

0 0 1 Substantial 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

Recovery 0 1 3 Satisfactory 

 
6.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed during the 

current financial year including the current status of audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to 

date 88% of 2021/22 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and 
not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 

appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be 
noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 

recommendations. 
 

6.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 

being allocated a risk, every audit completed has been given an ‘assurance 
opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control 

environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 
environment. The control levels are defined as follows: 

  
Control Level Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most 
part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the 
design or inconsistent application of controls within a few 
areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error. 

 
6.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous financial 

year 2020/21 implemented to date. This information will keep Councillors 

informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year audit 
recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation of some 
previous year recommendations will fall into 2021/22 and beyond depending 

on when the audit was carried out so this appendix will show when those 
recommendations become due for implementation. In due course, all 

recommendations will fall due and it will be possible to clearly identify which 
recommendations have not been implemented. 
 

6.2.5 To date 99% of 2020/21 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and 

not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 

Page 96



  

appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases.  It should be 
noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

 
 
6.3 Audits In Progress 

 
6.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table below. 

 
Service Audit Status 

Finance Creditor 
Payments 

Audit Complete. Management Response. 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

Housing Benefits Audit Complete. Management Response. 

Customer Services CivicaPay 

 

Audit in Progress. 

Finance 

 

Payroll Audit in Progress. 

 
 
6.4 Progress against Audit Plan 

 

6.4.1 The 2021/22 financial year has seen slow but steady progress against planned 
audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as detailed in 6.3 
above will be completed soon. Considerable audit resource was diverted 

throughout 2021/22 to support the corporate response to the administration of 
the various Government business grants support schemes. In addition audit 
resources were further reduced from December 2021 due to a staff 

secondment. As a direct consequence of this, the 2021/22 Audit Plan was 
amended to take into account the reduction in available audit days and the 

Audit Plan will take longer to complete than originally planned, with work still 
ongoing to complete last years planned audits. However this will not affect 
Internal Audit’s ability to provide the annual audit opinion.. 

 
6.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 

excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated: 
 

Summary Progress Information to 31st May 2022 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially completed 88% 

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 8% 

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned work) 132 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service Managers 

(including unplanned work) 

100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented within agreed 
timescale (including unplanned work) 

88% 

 

Page 97



  

6.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist 
or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system 
for the benefit of service delivery. 

 

Page 98



APPENDIX 1 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1
st

 FEBRUARY 2022 & 
31

st 
MAY 2022 

 
Housing Repairs & Maintenance 
 
Assurance Level 

 
Assurance: LIMITED 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that 

risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives 
section of this report are adequately managed. 
 

Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 Properties that are subject to a ‘Right to Buy’ 
application should be adequately highlighted to 
ensure that only high priority repairs are 
undertaken. 

 Adequate systems and controls should be 
implemented to ensure that expenditure is 
adequately approved and necessary for the 
requirements of the job. 

 All contractors/suppliers used for providing 
housing repairs and maintenance materials and 
services should be reviewed to ensure that 
appropriate quotes/tender exercises accurately 
specifying the Authority’s requ irements, have 
been undertaken and documented in 
accordance with Procurement Procedure Rules. 

 Supplier invoices should include a sufficient 
level of detail to enable the appropriate checks 
to be undertaken without representing an 
excessive administrative burden. 

 Appropriate records detailing all relevant 
equipment items held by the service should be 
maintained. 

 Reports detailing the preferred option for the 
future delivery of the service were submitted to 
Committee in September 2021. 

 
Summary of Recommendations 

 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  

 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Right to Buy Repairs    1    
Vehicle Tracking     1  

Tool Registers   1    
Payment of Invoices   2    

Procurement Procedure Rules    1    
Performance Monitoring     1  

Measures Jobs      1 
Post-repair Inspection Process      1 

Tenant Recharges     1  
Total   5  3 2 

 

Page 99



Licensing 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

  Small Society Lotteries procedures have 

recently been reviewed and improved / 
standardised. Application, renewal, 
submission of financial return and payment 

can now be carried out online. 

 Joint Enforcement visits with the Police are  
carried out regularly. 

 A Street Collection Policy has now been 
written and is currently in the consultation 
period. 

 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Licensing Act 2003 Applications     1  

Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) 

Certificates 

    2  

Complaints Records     1  

Income Reconciliation     1  

Total     5  

Page 100



Strategic Partnerships 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 An up-to-date register of partnerships 

should be compiled, regularly maintained 
and made available to all appropriate 
parties. 

 An independent assessment should be 
undertaken on a periodic basis to 
determine whether value for money is 

being obtained and evidence of outcomes 
from partnership working towards service 
and/or corporate objectives can be verified. 

 A review of all partnerships should be 
undertaken to ensure that the terms, 
conditions and commitments of each 
partner are formally documented. 

 Reports detailing the current level of 

partnership working and submitting 
recommendations for developing 
partnership working within the Council have 

begun to be submitted to the relevant 
Committees. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 

 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  

 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Partnerships Register   1    

Partnership Reviews   1  1  

Agreements/Terms of Reference   1  3  

Partnership Risks     1  

Training      1 

Total   3  5 1 

 

Page 101



Building Control Partnership 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: LIMITED 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that 
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives 
section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A signed copy of the agreement with Derbyshire 
Building Control Partnership Limited for the 

provision of Building Control Services should be 
obtained and securely stored. 

 Periodic checks should be undertaken by the 

Alliance to confirm compliance with the terms 
and conditions within the Services Agreement 
and achievement against key performance 

indicators. 

 Regular operational partnership performance 
meetings attended by relevant officers from 
both the Alliance and the service provider 

should be established. 

 The Alliance should ensure that they are 
adequately represented on the shareholders 

board and regularly attend the shareholders 
board meetings. 

 A data sharing agreement should be entered 

into by the partnership to ensure that adequate 
controls / processes are in place which comply 
with the data protection principles. 

 The transfer of the service to Derbyshire 
Building Control Partnership was market 

tested and adequately approved. 

 The provision of the service is adequately 
promoted. 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Risk Register     1  

Building Control Partnership Agreement   1    

Partnership Monitoring   3  1  

Partnership Board   1    

Insurance Policies     1  

Data Security   1  1  

Customer Feedback     1  

Service Charges     1  

Total   6  6  

 

Page 102



Sundry Debtors 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

  An appropriate segregation of duties is in 

place between staff responsible for raising 
debtors and accounting for income.    

 Regular reconciliations are carried out to 

ensure that income is correctly posted 
within the financial systems.   

 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Raising of Invoices     1  

Total     1  

 

Page 103



Treasury Management 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 The procedure for gaining retrospective 

authorisation from the Chief Executive for 
transactions such as investments and 
interest payments, should be reviewed to 

ensure compliance with Financial 
Regulations and Procedure Rule D3.1. 
 

 The Treasury Management team has 

continued to adapt to recent economic 
challenges in light of the pandemic and 
Brexit to ensure that the Alliance has 

operated a balanced budget; cash flow 
has been adequately planned; and 
funding has been available for capital 

plans. 

 Due to the rise in the Bank of England 
base rate in December 2021, and again in 

February 2022, investment activity has 
resumed, albeit, in a reduced capacity 
compared with pre-pandemic levels.  

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 

 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  

 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Financial Regulations & Procedure 
Rules 

    1  

Retrospective Authorisations   1    

Total   1  1  

 

Page 104



Council Tax 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A procedure should be developed to ensure 

that all new build properties are physically 
inspected and where complete, issued with 
a Completion Notice and registered with the 

Valuation Office. 
 

 Payments are promptly and accurately 

posted to customer accounts. 

 Daily reconciliations are carried out  
between the Income Management System 

and the Council Tax System. 

 Monthly reconciliations are carried out 
between the Council Tax System and the 
Financial Management System. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 

 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  

 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Property Inspections   1    

System Access     1  

Total   1  1  

 

Page 105



National Non-Domestic Rates 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A documented procedure for the 

inspection of business rate properties 
should be developed and implemented 
using a risk based methodology. 

 A sample of reliefs awarded were found to 

have been correctly applied and where 
necessary supported by sufficient 
documentation. 

 Parameters had been correctly set within 
the system for the 2021/22 billing year. 

 NNDR income is regularly reconciled to 
the Income Management System, and the 

Financial Management System. 

 
 

Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 

value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Year End Procedure Notes     1  

Valuation Office Reconciliation     1  

Inspection/Review of Business 
Premises 

  1    

Refunds      1 

Business Rate Relief Policy     2  

Total   1  4 1 

 

Page 106



General Ledger 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

  The end of year bank reconciliation was 

carried out accurately and promptly. 

 Suspense items are cleared promptly. 

 Allocations from holding accounts are made 
regularly. 

 Balances are accurately rolled forward as 
part of the year end process. 

 Journal authorisation is now recorded within 

the Integra system. 

 
 

Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 

value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Year End Closedown Timetable     1  

Total     1  

 

Page 107



Recovery 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 All accounts where recovery has been 

suppressed should be regularly reviewed to 
ensure that sufficient action is being taken 
to recover the debt. 

 2021/22 collection rates for Council Tax and 

Business Rates exceeded the performance 
targets set.  

 Write offs were adequately authorised with 

appropriate documentation retained. 

 
 

Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 

value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Policies and Procedures     1  

Suppression of Recovery Action   1  1  

Bailiff Services     1  

Total   1  3  

 

Page 108



APPENDIX 2 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2021/22 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 31st MAY 2022 

AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 

value 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 
 

Housing Rents 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  1 1 Substantial 

Housing Agency 6 1 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 1 Satisfactory 
Safeguarding 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  4 4 Satisfactory 

AES Contract Management 3 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 1  1 1 Satisfactory 

Commercial Properties 10 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 9  1 0 Satisfactory 

Data Protection/GDPR 16 0 0  0 0 3  2 2 13  0 0 Satisfactory 

Land Charges 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 

Human Resources 13 3 0  0 0 1  1 1 15  11 11 Satisfactory 

Cemeteries 9 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 8  1 1 Satisfactory 

Housing Repairs & Maintenance 8 2 0  0 0 5  1 1 5  2 2 Limited 

Licensing 5 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  1 1 Satisfactory 

ICT Asset Management 10 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 7  1 1 Satisfactory 

Strategic Partnerships 8 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 6  0 0 Satisfactory 

Building Control Partnership 12 0 0  0 0 6  0 0 6  0 0 Limited 

CivicaPay               Audit in Progress 

Sundry Debtors 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 Substantial 

Budgetary Control 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 
Treasury Management 2 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 1  0 0 Satisfactory 

Council Tax 2 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 1  0 0 Satisfactory 

NNDR 5 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  2 2 Satisfactory 

Creditor Payments               Management Response 

Housing Benefits               Management Response 

General Ledger 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 Substantial 

Recovery 4 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 

Payroll               Audit in Progress 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 132 0    31    101     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  11 11  30 25  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Signif icant control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance w ith Regulations / 

Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control w eakness / ineff iciency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 

Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system w hich may provide a benefit 

to either the user or the customer. 

     

Low  Minor control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management w ith additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – YEAR END INFORMATION FOR 2020/21 

AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 

value 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 
 

Corporate Governance 12 4 0  0 0 4  4 4 12  12 12 Satisfactory 

Housing Rents 2 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 Satisfactory 
Capital Accounting 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Elections 8 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Leisure Sports Development 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Housing Advice 7 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 8  8 8 Satisfactory 

Equalities & Diversity 12 2 0  0 0 4  4 4 10  9 8 Limited 

Corporate Project Management 7 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Performance Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

Regeneration 5 1 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  3 3 Satisfactory 

Emergency Planning&Business Cont 2 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 1  1 1 Satisfactory 

Risk Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

CCTV 6 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 3  1 1 Satisfactory 

Climate Change 7 0 0  0 0 3  2 2 4  4 4 Satisfactory 

Council Tax 8 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 6  6 6 Satisfactory 

NNDR 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Sundry Debtors 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Satisfactory 
Treasury Management 2 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 1  1 1 Satisfactory 

General Ledger 3 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 2  2 2 Satisfactory 

Recovery 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  4 4 Satisfactory 

Creditor Payments 5 1 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Budgetary Control 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Housing Benefits 8 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 6  6 6 Satisfactory 

Payroll 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 127 0    29    98     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  28 28  93 92  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Signif icant control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance w ith Regulations / 

Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control w eakness / ineff iciency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 

Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system w hich may provide a benefit 

to either the user or the customer. 

     

Low  Minor control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a minimal impact on the Council assets, 
information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management w ith additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 

in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Leak – Head of Audit 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-Specific 

 
Appendices Attached:  
Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Charter 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. The Audit Charter provides a framework for 

the operation of the Internal Audit service and is required by the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which require the Charter to be approved by 

the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee. 

 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee approve the Council’s Internal Audit Charter. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility. The Charter establishes Internal Audit’s 
position within the organisation, including the nature of the Head of Audit’s 

functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises access 
to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of 

engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities. 
 
3.2 The Internal Audit Charter has been reviewed to ensure continued compliance 

with the requirements of the PSIAS effective from March 2017 and is attached 

Page 113

Agenda Item 10



  

at Appendix 1. 

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 
resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 Approve the Internal Audit Charter (Recommended). The Council will have a 

formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility and is in accordance with the requirements of Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards, and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015. 

 

5.2 Do not approve the Internal Audit Charter (Not Recommended). The Council 
will not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

requirement to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards John Leak 
Head of Audit 
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 114



  

6. Detail 
 

6.1 The Internal Audit Charter provides a framework for the operation of the 

Internal Audit service and is required by the PSIAS. PSIAS require the Charter 
to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purpose is the Audit & 

Regulatory Committee. 
 
6.2 The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The PSIAS require that it should: 
 

 recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS; 

 define the scope of Internal Audit activities; 

 establish the responsibilities and objectives of Internal Audit; 

 establish the organisational independence of Internal Audit; 

 establish the accountability, reporting lines and relationships between the 

Head of Audit and the Audit Committee and those to whom the Head of 
Audit reports to functionally and administratively; 

 set out the responsibility of the Audit Committee and also the role of the 
statutory officers with regards to Internal Audit; 

 set out the arrangements that exist within the organisations counter-fraud 
and corruption strategy, requiring the Head of Audit to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform the 

annual Internal Audit opinion and the risk-based plan; 

 recognise that Internal Audit’s remit extends to the entire control 

environment of the organisation and not just financial controls; 

 establish Internal Audits right of access to all records, assets, personnel 

and premises, including those of partner organisations where appropriate, 
and its authority to obtain such information and explanations as it 
considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. 

 
6.3 The PSIAS also specifies that the Internal Audit Charter must: 

 

 define the terms “board” and “senior management” for the purposes of 
Internal Audit activity; 

 cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing; 

 define the role of Internal Audit in any fraud related work; and 

 describe safeguards to limit impairments of independence or objectivity if 
Internal Audit or the Head of Audit undertakes non-audit activities.  

 
6.4 The current Internal Audit Charter was previously approved by this Committee 

in June 2021. The Charter has therefore been reviewed to ensure continued 

compliance with the requirements of the PSIAS effective from March 2017 
(Appendix 1). No changes have been made to the Charter. 

 
6.5 The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed periodically or in the event of any 

significant changes. Updated versions will be submitted to the Audit & 

Regulatory Committee for approval when required. 
 

 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



  

APPENDIX 1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Charter 

 

 

 

June 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 117



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Table of Contents 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

            

            

 

  PAGE 

  

   

 INTRODUCTION………………………………………………………………………………… 1 

   

 MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT…..…………………………. 1 

   

 STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS………………………………………………………………. 1 

  

 INDEPENDENCE………………………………………………………………………………... 2 

   

 AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS………………………………………………………... 2 

   

 OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT…………………………………………………………. 3 

   

 SCOPE………………………………………………………………………………………….... 3 

   

 RESPONSIBILITIES…………………………………………………………………………….. 4 

   

 OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY………………………………………………………… 5 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES……………………………………………………………... 5 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………… 6 

   

 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN……………………………………………………………………….. 6 

   

 REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES…………………………………………………………... 7 

   

 QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME……………………………….  7 

   

Page 118



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 1 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 

responsibility. The charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the organisation, including the 

nature of the Head of Audit’s functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee1; authorises 

access to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; 

and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities.  

MISSION, DEFINITION & PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

The Mission provided in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) is: 

 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk -based and objective assurance, 

advice and insight.” 

 

The definition provided in the PSIAS is:  

 

“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 

value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 

by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk  

management, control and governance processes.” 

 

Internal Audit is therefore an assurance function which primarily provides an independent and 

objective opinion to the Council on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of its framework of 

governance, risk management and control. Internal Audit does this by conducting an independent 

appraisal of all of the Council’s activities, financial and otherwise. It provides a service to the whole 

of the Council and to all levels of management. 

 

Internal Audit will work in accordance with the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of 

Internal Auditing as set out in the PSIAS: 

 

 Demonstrates integrity; 

 Demonstrates competence and due professional care; 

 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent); 

 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation; 

 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced; 

 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement; 

 Communicates effectively; 

 Provides risk-based assurance; 

 Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused; 

 Promotes organisational improvement. 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 
 

The requirement for an Internal Audit function derives from local government legislation, including 

section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 which requires that all Local Authorities must “make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs”. More specific requirements are 

set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the Council to “undertake an 

effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 

processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. ”  

 

This authority is reinforced in the Council’s Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules.  

                                                 
1 The Audit Committee will fulfi l the roles and responsibil ities of “The Board” for the purposes of the PSIAS.  

Page 119



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 2 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

INDEPENDENCE 
 
The Internal Audit service will remain independent of the systems and procedures which are subject 

to its review. Internal Audit will also remain free from interference by any element of the Council and 

the scope of its work will not be restricted in any way. 

 

To enable the auditors to perform their duties in a manner which facilitates impartial and effective 

professional judgements and recommendations, Internal Audit staff will not be responsible for 

activities outside of Internal Audit’s main responsibilities. All audit staff will act with due professional 

care ensuring that they are fair and objective, free from any conflicts of interest and abide by 

professional standards and guidelines. 

 

In seeking to provide an independent and objective opinion it is accepted that, being located within 

the organisation, the Internal Audit function cannot be wholly independent of all management. 

Internal Audit’s independence will therefore be achieved through its organisational status and from 

the fact that the Head of Audit has no other areas of responsibility other than the Internal Audit 

function.  

 

The Head of Audit reports to the Chief Executive but has the right to report directly to the Executive 

Director (Finance & Customer Services) and Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer), Monitoring Officer, 

Chair of the Audit Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed necessary. The Chief 

Executive has other areas of responsibility which may compromise their independence when these 

areas are subjected to audit, where this occurs the Head of Audit can invoke the right to report 

directly to others.   

 

The Head of Audit will make the Audit Committee aware if the independence of Internal Audit is 

impaired or appears to be impaired. The nature of such a disclosure will depend upon the nature of 

the impairment.  

 

Audit advice and recommendations, including where Internal Audit has been consulted about 

system, policy, procedure development or significant changes to the internal control systems, are 

given without prejudice to the right of Internal Audit to review and make further recommendations on 

the relevant policies, procedures, controls and operations at a later date. 

  

The Internal Audit service determines its work priorities in consultation with Senior Management 

Team (ALT2) and the Audit Committee and the Head of Audit reports to the Audit Committee in 

relation to the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan, the Internal Audit Annual Report and periodic 

updates of Internal Audit work. 

 

The Head of Audit is responsible for the content of all written reports produced by the service and 

has the right to report in his own name and offer an audit opinion without “fear or favour” to all 

officers and members and in particular to those charged with governance. 

AUTHORITY & RIGHTS OF ACCESS 
 

In order to perform their duties Internal Audit has the authority, supported by the Accounts & Audit 

Regulations 2015 and set out in the Council’s Financial Regulations  and Procedure Rules, to:  

  

 access all Council premises at reasonable times; 

 access all assets, records, documents, correspondence and control systems; 

 receive any information and explanation considered necessary concerning any matter under 

consideration; 

 require any employee of the Council to account for cash, stores or any other Council asset 

under his or her control; 

 access records belonging to third parties, such as contractors, when required; and 

                                                 
2 The Alliance Leadership Team will fulfi l the roles and responsibil ities of “senior management” for the purposes of 

the PSIAS. 

Page 120



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 3 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 directly access the Chief Executive, Executive, Standards and Audit Committees.  

 

Where necessary such unrestricted rights of access may be called upon and should be granted to 

Internal Auditors on demand and not subject to prior notice or approval. All employees are required 

to assist Internal Audit in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities.  

  

The Internal Audit service will comply with any requests from External Auditors for access to any 

information, files or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work that they need in order to 

discharge their responsibilities. 

OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

The objective of the Internal Audit service is to give assurance to the Council on the adequacy of its 

governance arrangements. The key elements of this are: 

 

 to provide advice and support to ensure an effective control environment is maintained including 

completeness, reliability and integrity of financial, performance, risk and other management 

information and the methods for safeguarding assets; 

 to contribute to the achievement of corporate objectives by recommending improvements in 

control and performance of the systems established to ensure compliance with corporate and 

departmental policies and procedures and legislative requirements; and 

 to provide advice and guidance to ensure Managers have developed effective arrangements to 

promote appropriate ethics and values within the Council and arrangements to prevent and 

detect fraud and corruption. This will include input into the key policies such as Financial 

Regulations and Procedure Rules and Counter-fraud and Corruption Strategy. 

SCOPE 
 

All of the Council’s activities, regardless of funding source, may be subject to review by Internal 

Audit as Internal Audit’s remit allows for unrestricted coverage of the Authority’s entire control 

environment taking into account the Authority’s assurance and monitoring mechanisms, including 

risk management arrangements, for achieving the Council’s objectives. This does not imply that all 

systems will be subjected to review in any given year, but that all systems will be included in the 

audit planning process and hence be considered for review following the assessment of risk. 

 

The scope of audit work extends to services provided through partnership arrangements and 

necessary assurances will be derived either directly or by seeking reliance on assurances provided 

by others. Where relevant, appropriate access rights will be negotiated and included in contracts 

and partnership agreements to ensure that Internal Audit can obtain access to the personnel and 

records within the partner organisation to obtain the necessary assurances.  

 

It is not the remit of the Internal Audit service to question the appropriateness of policy decisions. 

However, the service is required to examine the management arrangements of the Council by which 

such decisions are made, monitored and reviewed, how polices are applied by the Council and also 

compliance with agreed policies.  

 

The Internal Audit service may also conduct special reviews, providing independent and objective 

services such as consultancy and fraud related work as requested by Management.  Due 

consideration will be given when planning this work to ensure that the service maintains its 

objectivity and independence. The impact of any additional work outside of the audit plan will be 

taken into account and where necessary reported to the Chief Executive and the Audit Committee. 

 

Internal Audit does not have responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud or corruption. It is 

the responsibility of all Managers to manage the risk of fraud by ensuring appropriate procedures 

are put in place to prevent and detect fraud. Internal Auditors will however, be alert in all their work 

to risks and exposures that could allow fraud or corruption to occur and to any indications that fraud 

Page 121



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 4 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

or corruption may have been occurring. Audit procedures alone, even when performed with due 

professional care, cannot guarantee that fraud or corruption will be detected. Internal Audit will 

investigate any suspected fraud and corruption arising from their work and may also be requested 

by management to assist with the investigation of suspected fraud and corruption.  

 

In line with the Council’s Counter-fraud and Corruption Strategy, the Head of Audit should be notified 

of all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety within the Council. Where relevant the 

Internal Audit service will advise and assist Managers in the investigation of fraud and corruption.  

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The Council has a responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the 

governance arrangements and producing an Annual Governance Statement.  The review of the 

effectiveness of the governance arrangements is informed by: 

 

 the work of the internal auditors;  

 information from managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of governance arrangements; and 

 comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 

To assist with this review the Head of Audit will produce an annual internal audit report summarising 

the areas that have been subject to Internal Audit review in the year. This annual report will include 

an opinion, based on the areas examined, on whether the Council’s governance arrangements, 

including those for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, are adequate and have been properly 

applied in the year. 

  

In order to provide the required opinion the Internal Audit service will undertake a programme of work 

which will aim to achieve the following objectives: 

 

 to appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of the Council’s system of internal control; 

  

 to determine the reliability and integrity of financial and other information including that used in 

decision making, and the methods used to identify, measure, classify and report such 

information; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the systems of internal control ensure compliance with 

established policies and procedures; 

 to ascertain the extent to which the assets and interests of the Council are properly controlled 

and safeguarded from loss; 

 to appraise the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed;  

 to investigate fraud and irregularities or significant breaches of the internal control system, where 

appropriate. 

 

Managers are responsible for ensuring that adequate internal control arrangements exist in relation 

to the risks facing their Services. They are also responsible for ensuring that staff are aware of 

processes and procedure rules required to operate the control systems. This responsibility includes 

the duty to continuously review internal controls and ensure that they remain suitable in design and 

effective in operation. The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of 

management to establish and maintain systems of internal control to ensure that activities are 

conducted in a secure, efficient and effective manner. 

 

Management can assist the process of Internal Audit by: 

 

 providing access at all reasonable times to premises, personnel, documents and assets that the 

auditors consider necessary for the purposes of their work; 

 giving information and explanations that are sought in the course of their work; 

 commenting on and inputting to the audit plan and the terms of reference for each review to 

ensure attention is focussed on areas of greatest risk or concern;  

 early notification of plans for change, including new operational systems and processes; 

Page 122



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 5 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 considering and responding promptly to recommendations in audit reports, either accepting and 

implementing recommendations or formally rejecting it and therefore accepting the risks involved 

in doing so; 

 ensuring agreed actions arising from audit recommendations are carried out in a timely and 

efficient fashion; 

 notifying the s151 Officer / Head of Audit immediately of any suspected fraud, theft, irregularity, 

improper use or misappropriation of the Authority’s property or resources. Pending investigation 

and reporting, the Director should take all necessary steps to prevent further loss and to secure 

records and documentation against removal or alteration; and 

 acting in line with the Authority’s disciplinary procedures. 

OBJECTIVITY & CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

Internal Auditors must demonstrate the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 

evaluating and communicating information about the function or process being examined. They 

must make a balanced assessment of all relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by 

their own interests or by others in forming judgements. 

  

All Internal Auditors working in Local Government are required to comply with the Code of Ethics 

contained in PSIAS in addition to any requirements placed on them by the Council or any other 

Professional Body that they are members of. 

 

All records, documentation and information accessed in the course of undertaking Internal Audit 

activities shall be used solely for that purpose. The Head of Audit and individual Internal Auditors 

(including contractors and external providers performing work on behalf of Internal Audit) are 

responsible and accountable for maintaining the confidentiality of the information they receive during 

the course of their work.  

 

Whilst Audit Reports are confidentially directed to the recipients named, they are subject to the 

provisions of the Freedom of Information Act and, as such, may be required to be made publicly 

available upon request.  Before responding to any request to make Audit Reports publicly available, 

or otherwise making them publicly available, the Head of Audit should be consulted and where 

necessary elements of the report can be redacted. Similarly, Audit Reports, or extracts from them, 

should not be included in, or appended to, any Council Report, nor should they be quoted as a 

background paper to any Committee Report without firstly consulting with the Head of Audit. 

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 
 

The Council has a duty to provide sufficient resources to allow an adequate and effective Internal 

Audit service to be provided. Where it is felt that the resources are inadequate to meet the 

objectives of the Internal Audit service, the Head of Audit will formally report this to the Chief 

Executive and s151 Officer, and, if the position is not resolved, to the Audit Committee.  

 

Internal Audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, qualification levels and experience, 

having regard to its objectives and to the PSIAS. The Head of Audit will hold a relevant professional 

qualification (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and be suitably experienced. The s151 Officer will be 

involved in the recruitment of the Head of Audit. 

 

The Head of Audit is responsible for ensuring that Internal Auditors receive appropriate training and 

experience to fulfil their duties and that levels of professional competence are maintained via the use 

of continual professional development. 

 

Where necessary, access to appropriate specialists from other departments or external sources 

should be made available to the Internal Audit service to assist in any audit, project or investigation 

requiring detailed specialist knowledge. 

 

 

Page 123



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 6 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT 
 

The Head of Audit is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Internal Audit service and 

fulfils the requirements of the “Chief Audit Executive” role required by the PSIAS. The Head of Audit 

will: 

  

 prepare an audit plan to review all relevant areas, and will update this plan if required to take 

account of changes in Council priorities and risks. The audit plan will be submitted to the Audit 

Committee annually for approval; 

 produce detailed audit programmes setting out the scope and objectives of each audit 

assignment, timescales and reporting arrangements; 

 ensure that work is completed to high standards in accordance with relevant professional 

standards; 

 ensure that a written audit report is produced for each assignment, giving an assurance opinion 

on the adequacy of the control environment and identifying actions to address any weaknesses; 

 ensure that audit reports are formally discussed with relevant Managers, an action plan is 

completed to reflect agreed actions and comments are recorded relating to each audit 

recommendation, together with the timescale for completion and the responsible officers. If a 

recommendation is not agreed by the Manager, this must also be stated; 

 ensure that follow-up work is undertaken to monitor the implementation of agreed management 

actions; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with managers of all levels and obtain feedback 

from them on the effectiveness of the service; 

 establish and maintain effective relationships with the External Auditors; 

 develop and maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme covering all aspects of 

Internal Audit activity. 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
 

The work of the Internal Audit service is based on the delivery of a risk based annual Audit Plan and 

is conducted on a predominantly risk based systems audit approach. The Head of Audit prepares a 

new Audit Plan each year in line with the requirements of the PSIAS and this is presented to the 

Audit Committee for approval. 

 

The Audit Plan is derived from all of the areas that have been identified for review (the audit 

universe). Internal Audit undertakes a risk assessment of the audit universe based on an 

established best practice risk scoring model which takes into account a number of criteria including 

corporate strategic risks and risks identified from other sources of external and internal assurance. 

The Audit Plan is then determined based on the outcome of this process.  

 

Within the annual Audit Plan the Head of Audit will balance several key requirements. These 

include: 

 

 the performance targets for the service; 

 the need to ensure core financial systems are adequately reviewed to provide assurance that 

management has in place proper arrangements for financial control, on which the external 

auditors will place reliance; 

 the need to appropriately review all other strategic and operational systems; 

 having a contingency allowance to deal with unplanned work which may arise in the year 

including special investigations and consultancy. 

 

Achievement of the Audit Plan is a key priority for the Service. The Head of Audit will continually 

monitor the completion of the Annual Audit Plan. Where the Audit  Plan is not being achieved the 

Head of Audit will be responsible for identifying the reasons for this and where possible take the 

necessary corrective action. 

 

Page 124



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 7 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

 

REPORTING ACCOUNTABILITIES 
 

The Head of Audit reports to the Chief Executive but has the right to report directly to the Executive 

Director (Finance & Customer Services) and Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) and Chief Finance 

Officer, Monitoring Officer, Chair of the Audit Committee or External Auditor where it is deemed 

necessary. The Statutory Officers will support the work of Internal Audit and provide the necessary 

backing to ensure that key weaknesses are addressed and recommendations implemented and 

support Internal Audit’s position in upholding good governance within the Council. Statutory Officers 

should also ensure that the Internal Audit service is provided with all necessary advice, explanations 

and information needed for them to effectively carry out their role.  

 

The Head of Audit will present the annual audit plan to members of the Audit Committee for 

approval. Regular reports outlining progress against the Internal Audit Plan and summarising the 

assurances given for completed audits will also be presented to the Audit Committee.  

 

An annual report will be presented to the Audit Committee summarising the work undertaken 

throughout the year and providing an overall opinion on the Council’s internal control environment. 

This report is a key source of assurance for the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  

The report will: 

 

 disclose any qualifications to that opinion together with the reasons for the qualification; 

 draw attention to any issues judged relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance 

Statement;  

 compare work actually undertaken with the work planned and summarise performance of the 

Internal Audit service against its performance targets. 

 

A written report will be prepared for every internal audit review and actions agreed with the relevant 

Manager. The report will be issued to the responsible Manager, Head of Service, Director and Chief 

Finance Officer. The report includes an ‘opinion’ on the adequacy of controls in the area that has 

been audited. Every Internal Audit Report is subject to a regular follow-up in accordance with the 

Audit Service’s formalised follow-up system, in order to ascertain whether the action stated by 

management in their response to the report has been implemented by the agreed due dates. Failure 

to agree or implement fundamental recommendations will be reported to the s151 Officer, Chief 

Executive and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 

 

The Head of Audit will report to the s151 Officer any serious weaknesses or significant fraud 

identified from the course of Internal Audit work or reported to Internal Audit. The matter may also be 

reported to the Chief Executive, the external auditors and the Audit Committee as appropriate. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
 

The Head of Audit will develop and maintain a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

(QAIP) in accordance with PSIAS. The QAIP will form the basis of the annual review of the system 

of internal audit as required by the PSIAS. For Internal Audit services operating in Local Government 

proper practice is now deemed to be PSIAS plus the Local Government Application Note (LGAN). 

 

The QAIP will show conformance with PSIAS/LGAN requirements and will offer explanations where 

conformance with PSIAS/LGAN is not achieved. An action plan may be developed as a result of the 

QAIP to achieve or improve levels of conformance. The outcome of the review and any resulting 

action plan will be reported to the Audit Committee and a statement regarding conformance with the 

PSIAS will be included in the Internal Audit Annual Report.  

 

An independent external review of Internal Audit will be carried out as part of the QAIP at least once 

every five years.  

 

Where non-conformance with PSIAS/LGAN impacts on the overall scope or operation of Internal 

Page 125



 

Internal Audit Charter June 2022 Page 8 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
High Peak Borough Council 

Audit activity the nature of the impact will be disclosed to the Audit Committee. Serious deviations 

from conformance will need to be considered for inclusion in the Council’s Annual Governance 

Statement. 

 

Page 126



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

15 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2022/23 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Leak – Head of Audit 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-Specific 

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 High Peak BC / Staffordshire Moorlands 

DC Internal Audit - Audit Plan 2022/23 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk based audit plan to 
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 

Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a documented risk 
assessment undertaken at least annually. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee approve the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 

2022/23. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards state that the Audit Plan must be 
based on a documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually and it 
needs to be flexible in response to changes in the Council’s business, risks, 

operations, programs, systems and controls. Furthermore, the Standard states 
that the Audit Manager must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans 

and resource requirements to senior management and the Audit Committee 
for review and approval. The Audit Manager must also communicate the 
impact of resource limitations. This report seeks to address these 

requirements. 

Page 127

Agenda Item 11



  

3.2 Considerable audit resource was diverted throughout 2021/22 to support the 
corporate response to the administration of the various Government business 
grants support schemes and audit resources were further reduced due to a 

staff secondment. As a direct consequence of this, work has continued into 
April and May 2022 to complete last years planned audits. The staff 

secondment has since been extended for a further 3 months. As a result the 
Audit Plan for 2022/23 will therefore be reduced accordingly and based on a 
full complement of staff from September onwards and will aim to cover the 

Council’s key risks and systems. 
 

3.3 The annual audit plan for 2022/23 has been created and is attached as 
Appendix 1. This involved a review of the risk scores in accordance with the 

Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology to ensure that the 

most recent changes affecting risk are taken into account. The Internal Audit 
Plan is a joint Alliance plan designed to make the best use of Alliance 

resources and to reflect the nature of Council services. 
 
3.4 Should any amendments to the audit plan be necessary during the year, these 

will be reported to Councillors at future Audit & Regulatory Committee 
meetings. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to ensure our future financial 

resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money. 
 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 Approve the 2022/23 Audit Plan (Recommended). The Council will have an 
achievable risk based internal audit plan which is designed to provide 

assurance that the control environment is effective in achieving the Council’s 
objectives and is in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
5.2 Do not approve the 2022/23 Audit Plan (Not Recommended). The Council will 

not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirement 
to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 

sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

None John Leak 
Head of Audit 
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

  

Page 128



  

6. Detail 
 

6.1 The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment undertaken 

at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. However the audit plan needs to be flexible to be 

able to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the Council so the entire 
scope of audits will receive ongoing consideration and attention to ensure that 
appropriate audit coverage is achieved. 

 
6.2  The Audit Plan has been developed using a comprehensive risk assessment 

framework which is designed to assess all areas of the Council’s services and 
thereby examine and evaluate the whole system of internal controls (both 
financial and non-financial) established by management. This risk assessment 

allows the Audit Plan to be focused, concentrating resources on the areas of 
greatest need and where there will be the best use of audit resources. The 

work is designed to appraise and review : 
 

 the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial and 

operational; 

 the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, 

procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the 
management of the Council, or externally; 

 the means of safeguarding assets; 

 the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 
employed, and whether operations are being carried out as planned and 

objectives and goals are being met. 
 

6.3 The risk based planning methodology utilised to prepare the audit plan 
assesses each system on eight risk elements : 

 

 Monetary / financial value; 

 Volume of transactions; 

 System factors – stability / type of processing application / complexity of 
regulations and / or processing; 

 Managerial and control environment / previous assurance; 

 Incidence / risk of fraud; 

 Sensitivity; 

 Corporate risks; and 

 Time since previous audit. 
 

This approach is linked to a mapping exercise whereby strategic risks are 

mapped to the Audit Plan to ensure they are adequately considered during the 
audit lifecycle. 

 
6.4 Considerable audit resource was diverted throughout 2021/22 to support the 

corporate response to the administration of the various Government business 

grants support schemes. In addition audit resources were further reduced from 
December 2021 due to a staff secondment. As a direct consequence of this, 

the 2021/22 Audit Plan was amended to take into account the reduction in 
available audit days and work has continued into April and May 2022 to 

Page 129



  

complete last years planned audits. The staff secondment has since been 
extended for a further 3 months. As a result the Audit Plan for 2022/23 will 
therefore be reduced accordingly and based on a full complement of staff from 

September onwards and will aim to cover the Council’s key risks and systems. 
Should the staff secondment continue beyond September the Audit Plan will 

have to be amended to reflect the reduction in available audit days. In addition 
the plan will have to be flexible to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the 
Council as the recovery phase progresses following the pandemic. 

 
6.5 The annual audit plan for 2022/23 has therefore been created and is attached 

as Appendix 1. As the Internal Audit service is a joint resource across both 

Alliance Councils, and all Alliance services are joint, the most efficient method 
of auditing to take advantage of economies of scale is to undertake audits 

covering both Alliance Councils. However there will still be occasions when 
audits only cover one of the Alliance Councils and this is reflected within the 

Audit Plan. The future audit approach to potential challenges to the internal 
control environment will need to be adapted as the delivery of Council services 
continue to be developed. 

 
6.6 It is planned to supplement the annual audit plan if required during 2022/23 

with the purchase of a specialist ICT audit resource to focus on technical ICT 
risks. An initial needs assessment to facilitate the prioritisation of future ICT 
audits was undertaken previously and where considered appropriate ICT 

audits arising from this assessment and from any additional risks highlighted 
since will be planned and undertaken during 2022/23 and future years uti lising 
available budget(s). 

 
 

 
 

Page 130



APPENDIX 1 
 
 

HIGH PEAK BC / STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DC 
INTERNAL AUDIT – AUDIT PLAN 2022/23 

 

AUDIT SMDC HPBC ALLIANCE TOTAL 

Key Financial Systems     

Budgetary Control   10 10 

Council Tax   15 15 

Creditor Payments   10 10 

Housing Benefits   15 15 
Housing Rents  15  15 

General Ledger   10 10 

Non-Domestic Rates   15 15 

Payroll   15 15 

Recovery   15 15 

Sundry Debtors   10 10 

Treasury Management   10 10 

TOTAL – KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 0 15 125 140 

Audits inc. Strategic Risks     

Alliance Norse Contract Management   15 15 

Alliance Norse Governance   10 10 

Asset Stock Management   10 10 

Climate Change   10 10 

Housing Strategy   15 15 

Human Resources Agile Working   10 10 

ICT Contract Management   15 15 

Leisure Contract Management   15 15 

Media & Communications   10 10 

Pollution & Noise Control   10 10 

Regeneration   15 15 

TOTAL – STRATEGIC RISKS 0 0 135 135 

Other Audits     

Conservation   10 10 

Development Control S106   10 10 

Enforcement   10 10 

Markets   10 10 

Housing Carelink  15  15 

Housing Right to Buy  10  10 

 Parks & Open Spaces   10 10 

Pest Control   10 10 

VAT   10 10 

TOTAL – OTHER AUDITS 0 25 70 95 

     

TOTAL PLANNED DAYS 0 40 330 370 

 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
  

Item  
Sept 
 2022 

Nov 
 2022 

Feb 
2023 

June 
 2023 

Details  

INTERNAL AUDIT      

Internal Audit Progress Report     
Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key 
performance information. 

Annual Audit Plan     To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan. 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
   To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion 

on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control environment. 

Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA  
   To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of 

the Council’s system of internal audit. 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

 
 

 
To consider updates to the formal document that 
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. (as required) 

EXTERNAL AUDIT      

Audit Committee Update  

 
 

  

 A summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that the Committee may wish to 

consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the 
audit – where not covered by other items on the 
agenda. 

Audit  Plan 

  

  
Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit 

consider as part of their work, the audit approach and 
the result of any interim work 

Audit Findings Report    
 To consider the external auditor’s report to those 

charged with governance on issues arising from the 

audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion. 

Auditor’s Annual Report 
 

 
 

 
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on 
their overall assessment of the Council. 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
  

 
 To consider the risk assessment and understanding of 

management processes. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 13



Item  
Sept 

 2022 

Nov 

 2022 

Feb 

 2023 

June 

 2023 
Details  

FINANCE      

Statement of Accounts   
  To review and approve the Council’s annual 

Statement of Accounts. 

Treasury Management Update     
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 
Management position to date and the projected 
outturn. 

Annual Treasury Management Report     

To recommend to Council for approval the annual 

Treasury Management Report summarising 
performance and compliance with the Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators. 

Treasury Management Strategy  
 

 
 Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

Financial Management Code      
Self-assessment against the principles of the FM 
Code. 

CORPORATE      

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)   
  To review and approve the Annual Governance 

Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation 
process and supporting evidence. 

AGS Progress Against Action Plan 

 

  
 Report on progress made against the actions raised 

as part of the previous years Annual Governance 
Statement process. 

Risk Management Update 
 

   
Report on developments in the Council’s risk 
management arrangements. 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

   
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial 

February) 

Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy 
 

   To consider updates to the Council’s Counter Fraud 
& Corruption Strategy. (as required) 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy 
& Procedures 

 
   

To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures. (as 

required) 

Whistleblowing Policy 
 

   
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing 
Policy. (as required) 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE      

Agree Programme of Work     To agree future work programme of A&R Committee. 

Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee 

inc. Terms of Reference 
 

   To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R 
Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

 

P
age 134


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Appointment of Independent Member
	5 External Audit Plan 21/22
	6 Risk Management Update
	Appendix A for Risk Management Update
	Appendix B for Risk Management Update
	Appendix C for Risk Management Update
	Appendix D for Risk Management Update

	7 Annual Treasury Management Report 21/22
	Appendix A 1 for Annual Treasury Management Report

	8 Treasury Management Update Q1 22/23
	Appendix A 1 for Treasury Management Update

	9 21/22 Internal Audit Periodic Report
	Appendix A 1 for Internal Audit Periodic Report
	Appendix A 2 for Internal Audit Periodic Report
	Appendix A 3 for Internal Audit Periodic Report

	10 Internal Audit Charter
	Appendix A 1 for Internal Audit Charter

	11 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 22/23
	Appendix A 1 for Annual Audit Plan - Internal Audit

	13 Work Programme 22/23

